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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip
Financial Highlights Bi i =
FINANCIAL SUMMARY HEHE
2014 2015 2016
—Z—mF —T—RF —E-RE
(RMB milion)  (RMB million) ~ (RMB million)
(AREBERL) (AREBET) (AR¥BEER)
Revenue g A 28,495 21,072 26,427
Gross Profit EH 1,368 357 2,674
EBITDA' HRFTSHE - BT -
EREHEAEF 1,721 1,151 3,022
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BRATISRIATEFI(B518) 245 (890) 1,055
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEHH/(BE) 66 (936) 531
Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of KARERFES
the Company FEIEEF, (E18) 67 (767) 722
Basic earnings/(losses) per Share (RMB)  GRREARUz/(E18)
(AR®ITT) 0.02 (0.26) 0.25
Net Assets FEEME 9,772 8,912 9,365
Total Assets BEE 23,743 22,364 21,049
Net Assets value per Share BRFEERE(BKRIEHE
(excluding non-controlling interests) HERERE)
(RMB) (ARETT) 3.16 2.90 3.16
1 The Company defines EBITDA as profit for the year before finance 1 RATIHEBITDAME & BB I & F

costs-net, income tax expense, amortisation of intangible assets,
amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights, depreciation B R RS ITE RIEL
and non-recurring items. Non-recurring items for the year ended 31 ERAENEERNZEERH c REE—
December 2016 included RMB 810 million (2015: RMB 521 million) E—XRNE+_A=+—HIEERN " I
as impairment of property, plant and equipment. REEMERBIEARKSI0ET
(ZZ—1%F - ARES21ET)ERY
% WEREEZRME -

RR7R - PIISTBR - S EESN -

Revenue Profit/(Loss) Attributable to owners of the Company
WA AATERFEEEGER(BR)
RMB million RMB million
ARBEETT ARBEETT
42,000 800 722
36,000 600
400
30,000 28,495
26,427 200
67
24,000
21,072 0 [ (767)
18,000 ‘
-200 ‘
12,000 -400 ‘
-600
6,000 J
-800
0 2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016
—ZE-F ZE—hF —E—RF —ZE—F —E—RF ZE—RF
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Financial Highlights Bi &=

AVERAGE SELLING PRICE AND GROSS PROFIT/ BT ENREER S NESEE
(LOSS) PER TONNE OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL HEF (EE)
PRODUCTS
2014 2015 2016
—E—mEF —ET-RF —E-RE
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB)

(AR¥7T) (AR¥®7T) (AR®T)

Average Selling Price per Tonne TN HEREE 2,657 1,918 2,057
Gross Profit/(Loss) per Tonne BHEER,(EE)
H-section steel products H AU 8 2 174 64 258
Strips and strip products A N AR E 167 50 319
Billets R 10 (135) 49
Cold rolled sheets and RBLAR R S AR
galvanised sheets (124) (196) 205
Rebar B2 47 ) 65 41 127
Sheet piling AR5 180 182 321
Combined e 131 33 233
Average Selling Price per Tonne Gross Profit per Tonne
BV HEERE BHER
RMB RMB
AR® T AR® T
4,000 300
233
3,000
2,657
200
1,918 207
2,000 ; .
100
1,000
33
2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016
—T—mE —ZT—hfF —T—RF —T-mFE —T-HF —T—REF
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Financial Highlights Bi i =

SALES VOLUME OF SELF-MANUFACTURED STEEL BITEENHEE RIREREEE s 2
PRODUCTS CLASSIFIED BY PRODUCTS HEE
2014 2015 2016
—ZT-mNF —E-hF —E-XREF
('000 tonnes)  ('000 tonnes) (’000 tonnes)
(Fmg) (Fma) (Fmg)
H-section steel products H AU $ 72 & 3,062 3,278 3,247
Strips and strip products A i) K A AR EE 4,025 3,952 4,381
Billets SR 668 638 1,526
Cold rolled sheets and R BLIR I 8 SR
galvanised sheets 503 398 291
Rebar B2 43 8 1,074 1,545 1,712
Sheet piling iR A 39 119 200
Total A5t 9,371 9,930 11,357

Sales Volume of Self-manufactured Steel Products

BITEENHEERNHER
5.4% 11.5% 4.0% 15.6% 2.6% 15.1%

SN - 0.4% 6a% 13.4%
'-\/ v 1.2% ? 1.7

) e

32.7%

201 4 201 5 33.0% 28.6%
—E—-F —E-—FE

42.9% 39.8% 38.6%
. H-section steel products H A §ff] Z @ . Cold rolled sheets and galvanised sheets /% L1 & % $ 1
. Strips and strip products #5 80 K %5 30 48 & & . Rebar 12 40 H
I sillets 3845 Sheet piling $0#7 15
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Corporate Information 2 8& %}

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun
(Executive Deputy General Manager and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li
(appointed as the Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial
Officer on 8 December 2016)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ondra Otradovec

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 20176)

COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing

(appointed on 15 July 20176)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 2016)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman)
Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing

(appointed on 15 July 2016)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Lam Pak Kan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lam Pak Kan

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th floor, Great Eagle Centre
23 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.chinaorientalgroup.com

LIST OF PRINCIPAL BANKERS (IN ALPHABETICAL ORDERS)

ABN AMRO

Agricultural Bank of China
Bank of Cangzhou

Bank of Communications
Bank of Hebei

China Construction Bank
Nanyang Commercial Bank
Bank of Chengde

Ping An Bank

Rabobank
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Chairman’s Statement = E#H%

REVIEW OF YEAR 2016
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In 2016, it was a year full of challenges and opportunities for the PRC
steel industry. The industry has been gradually recovered from the
recession in 2015. Under the backdrop of Chinese government’s
“Supply-Side-Reform” Policy and reduction of overcapacity in the
steel industry, solid achievement was crystallised and the supply
and demand in the steel industry gradually improved. While the
stock level of steel industry remained low, the implementation of
the “Supply-Side-Reform” Policy and the positive sales in the real
estate section have resulted in substantial increase in the activation
of construction projects, resulting in structural reform in the steel
industry and continuous increase in steel prices.

With this background, the Group continued to strive for improvement
and optimisation in production cost, environment protection and
product mix, thereby enhancing the profit margin and sustainability
of the operation. In this regard, the Group achieved a very substantial
improvement of its results, with a revenue of approximately RMB
26.4 billion for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing
an increase of approximately 25.4% as compared with last
year. Comparing with last year, the average selling price of self-
manufactured steel products increased by approximately 7.2% to
RMB 2,057 per tonne, the gross profit increased by approximately
707.9% to RMB 2.65 billion. Although there was a provision
for impairment of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB 810 million primarily arising from shut-down
or future shut-down of certain production line under the policy of

China Oriental Group Company Limited B 5y 4 B % B A B A 7]
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steel production base in the world.
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In 2017, the Group will continue to develop its
business towards the direction of largest section
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT

Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Chairman’s Statement = F#H &

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

resolving steel excess capacity of the Chinese government, profit of
the Group for the year 2016 still reached approximately RMB 531
million, representing an increase of approximately 156.7% over loss
for last year of RMB 936 million, which is the highest since 2011.
EBITDA of the Group, adjusted for non-recurring items, also further
improved from RMB 1.151 billion last year to RMB 3.022 billion.
EBITDA per share, adjusted for non-recurring items, increased to
RMB 1.03 per share (2015: RMB 0.39 per share). In addition, the
Group has been working to reduce debt and redeemed all of the
2017 Senior Notes in advance in year 2016. The debt-to-capital ratio
further improved from 45.4% last year to 25.8%.

RERIE )

PARESIETL REFARKI.36
BITHE BN 156.7% » T E —F
——FRUARES®F - NEEAKR
FTBF - BIRS/FACAN B R 5 A
FEHABIELEMEER) R EFH
HWARB LI ETE—FIHREEAR
¥ 30.22 87T « BIRIOBRATISEE - BAESF
AR~ B RS R (K ARIELEE
MIEER)EEBRARE1.03T(=ZF
—hF: FRARK0.397T) LI 1B
EAREE—EROBIRESE  YERZ
E-RFREBRE2H T —tFEL
= EEEEARL RYEFA45.4%i
— S REE25.8% °
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Chairman’s Statement = E#H%

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

With respect to the steel business, the Group continued to invest
substantially to and endeavored to enhance the competitiveness and
economic efficiency of its products. These efforts include improving
production facilities to enhance efficiency, expanding sales channels,
developing diverse and high-end products, increasing the share
of products with high additional value and reducing emission.
Apart from developing and optimising the new categories of the
existing products, such as strips and section steel, the Group has
also developed products to suit for other countries such as the
American standards, the Biritish standards, the Korean standards the
Indonesian standards, etc., the coverage of the American standards
and the British standards have been above 85% or more, so as to
facilitate the penetration into international markets. During the year,
through leasing of a production line, the production capacity of
2016 increased by 1 million tonnes to 12 million tonnes. The Group
has also been investing in its production facilities in order to reduce
energy consumption in the steel production process and satisfy
emission requirements. The self-generated electricity ratio of the
Group increased to approximately 60% in 2016 from approximately
50% in 2015.

As at the end of October 2016, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group
Zhengda Iron and Steel Company Limited (“Zhengda Iron and
Steel”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, completed
the shutdown of one 500 cubic meter blast furnace and one 60
tonnes converter furnace in accordance with an agreement with the
government of Tangshan City (the “Shutdown”) by the Group, which
reduced approximately 600,000 tonnes of steel production capacity.
It is expected that a further reduction of approximately 600,000
tonnes will be implemented in 2017 to satisfy assignment of capacity
reduction. Following the relevant reduction, the annual capacity
of the Group will become approximately 11 million tonnes. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group sold approximately
3.2 million tonnes of self-produced H-section steel products and
continued to secure its leading position in the H-section steel market
of Mainland China.

COMPLAINT
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Public Attachment 11

Chairman’s Statement =E#®R%E

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

With respect to the real estate business, the Group was dedicated
in promoting green structural development construction besides
developing traditional real estate projects. The sales of the Donghu
Bay project in Tangshan City, residential and basement projects
and commercial and office projects of Xintiandi and the Meishu
Hall project in Suzhou continued in 2016, facilitated the stable
development of the real estate business of the Group and brought
sustainable income. For the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group recorded revenue and operating loss from real estate
business of approximately RMB 212 million and RMB 18 million
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue and gross
loss arising from trading of steel products and iron ore of the Group
were approximately RMB 2.21 billion (2015: approximately RMB
1.36 billion) and approximately RMB 20 million (2015: approximately
RMB 42 million) respectively.

The Group also engages in financing industry through its
subsidiaries, Oriental Fullhero Leasing Co. Ltd. (“Fullhero
Leasing”), Oriental Evertrust Finance Leasing Co. Ltd. (“Oriental
Evertrust”), Tianjin Oriental Huitong Microcredit Co. Ltd. (“Oriental
Huitong”) and Beijing Jinxi Investment Holding Co. Ltd. (“Beijing
Jinxi Investment”). The Group will conduct post-loan inspection
to each existing project in order to reduce risks. As at 31
December 2016, Fullhero Leasing, Oriental Evertrust, Oriental
Huitong and Beijing Jinxi Investment provided loans, net of
provision, amounting to RMB 401 million to independent
third parties at interest rates ranged from 12.0%
t0 24.0% per annum.

RERIT )

MEWEERME  A5BERBEEESR
HWEBBI  NBHOEFEREEER
BREEZ - URABILTHERBEES -
BN A2 EERMTEER &
XRPAEBEAREEEBEARE
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E-ET-XFt+-A=+—HILtFE "
AEBHRSEHEEFERAREEEE
DRAARE212EBTTRARE1,8008
5T o

HE-_ZT— X+ -_A=+—HIt#F
B AEENNEERLREBRLES T
REWAFIEED B A ARE2211E
T(ZE—RF : HARE13.61ET) RY
AREE2008T(ZE—RF HARK
420087T) °

AEENEBENBRAR  RAHEEM
EERAR(THRLERE])  RAHEER
BHEBRARIRAFER] - KER
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RIEFORAREZERAR AR (LR
FARED2HEBEXER  AEBEEHE
ERNERMEBEETERBRETIEN
FIRERE R —_E—XRF+_A=1+—
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Chairman’s Statement =E#H%E

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (continued)

In order to diversify its business, the Group has also set up
Oriental Jingyuan Science Technology (Beijing) Co. Ltd. (“Oriental
Jingyuan”) and related subsidiaries to develop core technologies
for semiconductor chip design and manufacturing process
optimisation/equipment. The Group would continue to explore the
development potential of this project.

Trading in the shares of the Company (“Shares”) had been
suspended from 29 April 2014 due to insufficient public float. The
public float was restored on 27 January 2017 through placing of
new shares under general mandate by the Company and placing of
existing shares by the controlling shareholder of the Company and
trading was resumed on 1 February 2017.

Finally, under the excellent results of current year and thank you for
shareholders’ continuous support to the Group, the Board proposed
the distribution of a special dividends in addition to a final dividends.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [ % B A FR 2 7]
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Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Public Attachment 11

Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products

Sales Volume

In 2016, the total sales volume was 11,357,000 tonnes (2015:
9,930,000 tonnes), representing an increase of approximately

14.4%.

The sales volume breakdown during the year was as follows:

H-section steel products

Strips and strip products

Billets

Cold rolled sheets and
galvanised sheets

Rebar

Sheet piling

Total

HELEIE o
N R E R
RERBEFR

R

At

EFE eI
HEBTEENNEER 2 HEDT
HEE

T RFEIHEE/R11,357,0000 (=

T —H4:9,930,0000F) - EHNHI14.4% °

REBFEHEEHMAMMT

COMPLAINT

2016 2015
“E-RE “ZT-1fF Changes in
Sales volume Sales volume Sales volume
HEE HEE HEEE(L
Increase/
('000 tonnes) (000 tonnes) (Decrease)
() (FmE) /(i)
3,247 28.6% 3,278 33.0% (0.9%)
4,381 38.6% 3,952 39.8% 10.9%
1,526 13.4% 638 6.4% 139.2%
291 2.6% 398 4.0% (26.9%)
1,712 15.1% 1,545 15.6% 10.8%
200 1.7% 119 1.2% 68.1%
11,357 100% 9,930 100% 14.4%
RZZE—RFFERN - AEENFER

During the year of 2016, the Group’s production capacity was

approximately 12 million tonnes per annum.

#71,200 & -
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Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products
(continued)

Revenue

Revenue in 2016 was RMB 23,367 million (2015: RMB 19,046
million), representing an increase of approximately 22.7%.

The sales breakdown and average selling price by product (excluding
value added tax) during the year were as follows:

2016
ZE-RE
Average
selling
Revenue price
4
KA HEEE

(RMB million) (RMB/tonne) (RMB million) (RMB/tonne,
(A\RBEER) (AR%T/H) (AREEER) (AR¥T/B

¥EOE®)

HEBTAEENMBER ZHES @)

WA

—ZT—RFRAABARE233.67ET(Z
T—FF : ARMA190.461E7T) » 14
22.7% o

I R RS A B T 2 S B CR
SHEEBOMT :

2015 Changes
“Z-8F 21
Average Average
selling selling
Revenue price Revenue price
WA HEEE WA HEBE

Increase/(Decrease)

i/ ()

H-section steel products HA S E M 7,121 2,193 6,534 1,994 9.0% 10.0%
Strips and strip products R EEE R 8,735 1,994 6,896 1,745 26.7% 14.3%
Billets BN 2,785 1,826 1,121 1,757 148.4% 3.9%
Cold rolled sheets and R BLIR R 8B R

galvanised shests 929 3,189 1,127 2,826 (17.6%) 12.8%
Rebar 24 3,231 1,887 3,035 1,965 6.5% (4.0%)
Sheet piling R 566 2,834 333 2,794 70.0% 1.4%
Total/combined At/ 174 23,367 2,057 19,046 1,918 22.7% 7.2%

The increase in revenue from self-manufactured steel products
was primarily due to the increase in the average selling price of the
Group’s products by 7.2% to RMB 2,057 per tonne in 2016 from
RMB 1,918 per tonne in 2015 and an increase in the sale volume of
the Group’s products by 14.4% to approximately 11.4 million tonnes
in 2016 from approximately 9.9 million tonnes in 2015. The increase
in average selling price and sales volume of the Group’s products
were mainly due to the improved supply and demand in the PRC
steel industry under the reduction of overcapacity during 2016.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [ % B A FR 2 7]
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Management Discussion and Analysis B Ez &k 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ES - (E))

Sales analysis from sale of self-manufactured steel products HEATTAEENNBEBERZIEES T &)

(continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit HEKARETF]

The consolidated gross profit in 2016 was RMB 2,650 million ZE-RENEHENBARK 265018
(2015: RMB 328 million), representing an increase of approximately T(ZE—RE: ARKEI28ET) » #40
707.9%. #41707.9% °

Average unit cost per tonne, gross profit per tonne and gross profit NEBEETMEHAKANEE - GHEE

margin during the year were as follows: FEEMZRIDT
2016 2015
ZB-RF “Z-hfF
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Average profit profit Average  profit/loss)  profit/(loss)
unitcost  per tonne margin unit cost per tonne margin
¥4 ¥ SWERN/ 5/
HAEE  BWER ERE HAEE €23 (EB)%
(RMB/tonne) (RMB) (RMB/tonne) (RMB)
(A\R¥7/H) (AR%7®) (\R&/®)  (ARET)
H-section steel products HAY S o 1,935 258 11.8% 1,930 64 3.2%
Strips and strip products il LA ER 1,675 319 16.0% 1,695 50 2.9%
Billets S 1,777 49 2.7% 1,892 (135) (7.7%)
Cold rolled sheets and RER RIEFR
galvanised sheets 2,984 205 6.4% 3,022 (196) (6.9%)
Rebar 240 1,760 127 6.7% 1,924 4 2.1%
Sheet piling HRE 2,513 321 11.3% 2,612 182 6.5%
Combined Ta 1,824 233 11.3% 1,885 33 1.7%

In 2016, gross profit per tonne of the Group’s products increased to RIE—RF AEEERNBHEEF

RMB 233 from RMB 33 in 2015, reflecting an increase of 606.1%. H-ZE—AFMAREIBTEMEAR
In 2016, gross profit margin increased to 11.3% from 1.7% in 2015. o337 0 B AN606.1% o N —FE — /X
The increase in gross profit margin was primarily due to the increase FrENMEH-_ZE—RAFH1.7%EM
in the average selling price, decrease in the average unit cost of the 2113% EFXENTEEAA_Z
steel products and increase in sales volume of the Group in 2016. —RNFEAEENEEROFEHHEHESE

Bt IR EE TR IA RIHEIE N
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Development

In 2016, the Group had completed Gross Floor Area (“GFA”) of
148,125 m?. The status of the completed GFA by project is set out

as follow:

No. City

55 W

1 Suzhou
A

2 Suzhou
A

¥EOE®)

Fo it EE fa 3

RIZE—ARF AEBEERTEEEE
([EEHE ) A148,125 K « AT A
RIEEMDRITEEEMBIEN

Property project Phase of project
YI%1EE HEMEER

Xintiandi Commercial and office
R [SEISE I YNES
Meishu Hall Residential

EEH F=

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue from real estate
business of the Group amounted to approximately RMB 212 million.

The GFA of properties delivered was 27,852 m?. The average selling

price of properties delivered was approximately RMB 7,500 per m?.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had the following projects
under construction with a GFA of approximately 78,000 m?:

No. City

iR W

1 Tangshan
L

Property project

Donghu Bay

Phase of project

THE R

Phase 3
=

The above projects are expected to be completed in 2017 and
will contribute stable revenue and profits to our Group.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [ % B A FR 2 7]

Total GFA
PBEREMERE
(m?)

(EFK)

65,670

82,455

HE_Z—X"Ft+_A=+—B81t#F
B AEEEHEEBHRANDARK
212B T EXNYERNEEERREAR
27,852 F 7oK e ERNMEMTHIERE
RETFHARHOARE7,5007T °

RZE—RF+_A=+—H *&£H
BTYEREE TEMNEEMBEY

78,000 F J5 K :

GFA under
Construction
EENEEEE
(m?)

(EHK)

77,760

Estimate time
of completion

PR TR

March 2017

—E—+F=A

FRABEREHER T -LEFRTK
3 7 3 75 5 B 7 SRAR FE A S A
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

In order to sustain a stable financial status, the Group closely
monitors its liquidity and financial resources.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had unutilised banking facilities
of approximately RMB 1.0 billion (2015: RMB 7.4 billion).

As at 31 December 2016, the current ratio of the Group,
representing current assets divided by current liabilities, was 1.1
(2015: 1.1) and the gearing ratio, representing total liabilities divided
by total assets, was 55.5% (2015: 60.1%).

As at 31 December 2016, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB 1,290 million (2015:
approximately RMB 2,338 million).

After considering its cash and cash equivalents as well as the
banking facilities currently available to the Group, it is believed that
the Group has sufficient capital to fund its future operations and for
general business expansion and development.

Bt %5 ol R
BeRn@ENTBER

AEBETVERESRIUELMBE
IR AR R AR BURS ©

R-E—-—RE+-A=1+—8 Kx&£E
A RIRTIREBREANAREI0ET
(ZZ—RF: ARE74ET) -

RZZE—ARF+_A=+—8  ~%£H
MRS E(RBEERURBDAR) A
11 CE—RF 11 REEEBRE
LEER(BEERNBEE)ARS55%(ZF
—HF :60.1%) °

R-ZE—RNF+-ZA=+—8  K&£H
MRS MRS EBYWAEHARE12.90E
T(ZE—RF  HARKE23.38187T) °

ZRBEMAKEMFEZRERAERE
BYMARHRITRERER - 815
AEERERRNESERNARKZES
BIER—BEBBERANER2ESHE -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Structure

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
repurchased a total of US$ 62,212,000 in principal amount of the
2017 Senior Notes. On 17 November 2016, the outstanding 2017
Senior Notes of US$ 49,156,000 in principal amount was early
redeemed in full. Upon the completion of the early redemption and as
at 31 December 2016, no 2017 Senior Notes remained outstanding.

As at 31 December 2016, borrowings of RMB 735 million of the
Group bore fixed interest rates ranged from 1.43% to 6.00% per
annum and borrowings of RMB 646 million of the Group bore
floating rates ranged from 4.75% to 4.79% per annum. The Group’s
exposure to changes in market interest rates was considered to be
limited. The Group did not use any derivatives to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the debt-to-capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes current and non-current borrowings, other long-
term payables and borrowings from related parties. The Group
regards its non-current borrowings, non-current portion of other
long-term payables, non-current portion of borrowings from related
parties and its equity attributable to owners of the Company as its
total capital. As at 31 December 2016, the debt-to-capital ratio of the
Group was 25.8% (2015: 45.4%).

The consolidated interest expenses and capitalised interest in 2016
amounted to RMB 180 million (2015: RMB 424 million). The interest
coverage (divide profit/(loss) for the year before finance costs — net
and income tax expense by total interest expenses) was positive 6.3
times (2015: negative 1.1 times).

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F % B A FR 2 7]

M)
BARGEE

BHE-_Z-—X"E+A=+—H1
HE ARAREBEARASEE
62,212,000X T2 —_E—+FEXLE
BeR=ZZTE—R"F+—A++tH  KE
B A LR 48 %649,156,000% 7T 2
T HEEAZEROREURAED -

EriiErBE kR —E—RF+H
=+—R BE_Z—+FEEEED
KEE -

RZZE—RF+ZA=+—08 ' ~5E
MARKE7IBETHERBFNENT
1.43% £ 6.00% K [E £ 7 & - A& H
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total commitments of
RMB 1,558 million (2015: RMB 863 miillion). It is estimated the
commitments will be financed by the Group’s internal resources and
unutilised banking facilities.

Guarantee and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s contingent liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB 11 million (2015: RMB 11 million),
which was the provision of guarantee for bank borrowings in favor of
a third party.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the net book value of the Group’s
leasehold land and land use rights amounting to approximately RMB
56 million (2015: nil), property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately RMB 975 million (2015: nil), inventories amounting to
approximately RMB 69 million (2015: approximately RMB 62 million),
notes receivable amounting to approximately RMB 358 million (2015:
approximately RMB 1,426 million) and restricted bank balances
amounting to approximately RMB 891 million (2015: approximately
RMB 1,774 million) had been pledged as security for the Group’s
notes payable issuing, banking borrowings and letter of credit
issuing.

Public Attachment 11

EEENWR DT

M E )
HHE
RZE—RF+-_A=1+—H A&EH

MBEEERBARKEAS8EL(ZE—H
F: AR¥8.63187T)  tAFEE K Hh
AEBEEESRIARITREBRERE
BRE o

ERMIARRE

RZZFE—XR"F+-A=+—H £%£E
M ABEANARKII10ET(ZE
—hF: AR¥E11008TT)  BE—EFE
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BESA
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& E)MBE T R+ AR - %A
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Exchange Risks

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises from the procurement
of iron ores and the relevant products from overseas suppliers
and the Group’s senior notes, which is denominated and settled
in USD. Foreign exchange rates fluctuate in reaction to the macro-
economic performance of different countries and fund flows between
countries arising from trade or capital commitments. In view of the
continuous decrease of the RMB exchange rate against USD since
the reform in RMB exchange policy in 2015, during the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group has entered into certain foreign
currency forward contracts so as to reduce the impact of the volatility
of the RMB exchange rate against USD. The Group also reviewed
and rearranged its monetary assets to mitigate the impact from the
change of RMB to USD exchange rate.

Iron Ore Swaps

In view of the significant fluctuation of iron ore price in 2016, the
Group has been cautious in entering into iron ore swap contracts so
as to reduce the risk of potential negative impact of the iron ore swap
contracts.

Dividend

The Board proposed a final dividend of HK$ 175.9 million
(approximately RMB 157.3 million), representing HK$ 0.05
per ordinary share and a special dividend of HK$ 351.8 million
(approximately RMB 314.7 million), representing HK$ 0.10 per
ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company at the close of business on Monday,
12 June 2017. The final dividend and special dividend, payable on
Tuesday, 27 June 2017 are subject to approval of the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) to be held on Wednesday, 31 May 2017.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Post Balance Sheet Events

Save as disclosed below, there are no events to cause material
impact on the Group from the balance sheet date to the date of this
report that should be disclosed.

(@ On 20 January 2017, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement 1”) with Shenwan
Hongyuan Securities (H.K.) Limited (“the Placing Agent”)
whereby the Company agreed to place, through the Placing
Agent, on a best effort basis, a maximum of 586,285,000
shares (“Placing Shares 1”) to not less than six placees
(“Placees I") at a price of HK$1.30 per Placing Share |. (‘Placing

)

On 20 January 2017, Wellbeing Holdings Limited (“Vendor”),
the controlling shareholder of the Company, entered into a
placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement II”) with the Placing
Agent in order to assist the Company to restore its public
float. Pursuant to the Placing Agreement II, the Placing Agent
agreed to place, on a best effort basis, 64,314,000 Shares
representing approximately 1.83% of the issued share capital
of the Company of 3,517,710,000 Shares as enlarged by the
issue of the 586,285,000 Placing Shares I. (“Placing II”)

(b)  On 27 January 2017, completion of the Placing | took place
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Placing
Agreement |. An aggregate of 586,284,000 Placing Shares |,
representing approximately 16.67% of the issued share capital
of the Company immediately after completion of the Placing |,
have been successfully placed to not less than six Placees | at
the placing price of HK$1.30 per Placing Shares .

On 27 January 2017, completion of the Placing Il took place
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Placing
Agreement Il. An aggregate of 64,314,000 Placing Shares I,
representing approximately 1.83% of the issued share capital
of the Company immediately after completion of the Placing |,
have been successfully placed at the placing price of HK$1.30
per Placing Shares |I.

M E )
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I

i
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Post Balance Sheet Events (continued)

Immediately after the completion of the Placing | and Placing
II, the Vendor and parties acting in concert with it and
other connected persons of the Company are interested in
2,638,280,740 Shares (representing approximately 75.00% of
the total issued share capital of the Company) and the balance
of 879,428,260 Shares (representing approximately 25.00%
of the total issued share capital of the Company) will be held
in the hands of the public. Accordingly, the public float of
the Company has been restored and the Company has met
the minimum prescribed percentage of shares being held by
public shareholders in accordance with Rule 8.08 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

(c)  On 1 February 2017, the trading in the shares of the Company
had been resumed.

ACCREDITATION FOR THE COMPANY AND ITS
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Hebei Jinxi Iron and
Steel Group Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”), a subsidiary of the
Company is awarded the “Excellent Metallurgical Enterprise of the
Metallurgical Business Association Under the All-China Federation
of Industry and Commerce”, the “30 Best Enterprises in Cultural
Establishment of Chinese Private Enterprises” and so on, and was
awarded the “Hebei Province May 1%t Labour Award” by Hebei
General Labour Union. Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Dafang
Heavy Industry Science and Technology Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, was honoured with the “Quality Foundry
Gold Award” at the 14" China International Foundry Expo. Oriental
Green Energy-Saving Environmental Protection Engineering Co.
Ltd. was ranked No. 7 among the “Top 100 Energy Saving Service
Companies in China”.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company plans to distribute not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit as dividend after its listing. However, the actual
amount of dividend and as a percentage to profit will be at the
discretion of the Board and will depend upon the Company’s future
operation and earnings, capital requirement and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions, and other factors that the
Board considers relevant. In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
laws, the distributable profit of the PRC respective subsidiaries of the
Company should not be higher than its net profit, after appropriation
to the statutory reserve as determined by the generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintained close contact with its investors during
the year of 2016. The Company not only made timely disclosures
of the Company’s information through the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) for increasing
the transparency of the Company, but also held meetings and
conferences with investors, updating them on the Group’s business
development and industrial trend.

This helped to promote investors’ understanding of the Group while
allowing us to understand more about the opinions and expectations
of investors. In future, the Group will further its effort to maintain close
contact and effective interactive communication with investors.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 11,900 and temporary staff of approximately 1,200.
The staff cost included basic salaries and benefits. Staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance plans, pension
scheme, unemployment insurance plan, maternity insurance plan
and the fair value of the share options, etc.. Effective from July 2008,
the Group implemented a workers’ injury insurance scheme and
contributed 1.5% of the workers’ wages to the Social Insurance
Bureau. According to the Group’s remuneration policy, employees’
package is based on productivity and/or sales performance, and is
consistent with the Group’s quality control and cost control targets.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

It is expected that in 2017, the prices of steel will continue to
fluctuate but overall, see an upturn. With the Chinese government’s
regulation policy of the steel industry, there will be continuous
structural improvement in the steel market and support to steel
prices, resulting in a more optimistic business environment and
continuous recovery in the steel industry. In addition, the improving
US economy and Chinese government’s active adjustment in
the economy will likely improve global business environment and
bring stable demand to the steel industry. The Group had made
impairment provision of approximately RMB 810 million in 2016
primarily for property, plant and equipment which had or were to
be shut down due to overcapacity policies and therefore does not
expect further material impact in 2017. Under such a backdrop,
the Group plans to maintain its competitiveness and gain a more
prominant position in the industry by continuous improvement in
production efficiency, developing and increasing the number of high
value-added products, reducing production cost, expanding market
share and optimising the utilisation of internal resources.

In 2017, the Group will continue to focus on the development of
certain high-end steel products including high-strength, high and
low temperature repercussive and high-weatherability H-section
steel products, as well as products which suit standards of other
countries including the American standards, the British standards
etc., to continuously improve the quality and passing rate of
established products, to increase the market share of high value-
added products and to further optimise production costs including
the proportion of self-generated electricity, in order to enhance the
core competitiveness of the Group.

The Group made its first investments in an upgrading project for
sheet piling and ultra-large H-section steel products in 2016. The
project is designed to have an annual capacity of approximately
1.0 million tonnes and is expected to require investments of
approximately RMB 1.0 billion to RMB 1.5 billion, which will further
optimise the product portfolio and reduce reliance of the Chinese
market on imported high-end section steel products. It is scheduled
to commence operation in the fourth quarter of 2017.

In addition, the Group will continue to keep an eye on state projects
which will consume large volume of steel, broaden the channels
to collect market shortages product information to guide its new
product development. Furthermore, it will strengthen the control
of risks management and production procedure to enhance the
function of the risk control department, to improve the risk resistance
capacity of the Group and to maintain its stable operation.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

Since its listing in 2004, the Group has continued to expand
its business, diversify its steel product categories and business
portfolio. During the last 13 years (since being listed), the Group’s
overall crude steel production capacity has reached approximately
11.0 million tonnes per annum from approximately 3.1 million tonnes
per annum at the time of the listing. The steel products include
H-section steel products, sheet piling products, strips and strip
products, billets, cold rolled sheets and galvanised sheets and rebar.
The Group is constantly developing products of different series and
specifications to meet market needs. Moreover, the H-section steel
products of the Group maintain its leading position in China. The
Group will continue to develop its business towards the direction of
largest section steel production base in the world, and to explore
expanding through upstream and downstream integration. The
Group will strive to take full advantage of the current solid financial
condition and efficient management to intensify the continuous
development of the Group and to maximise the Shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to extend its heartfelt gratitude to all of its
staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and to its
shareholders for their continuous support and trust in the Company.

By order of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

HAN Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017

*

For identification purposes only
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Jingyuan, aged 60, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company (appointed on 13 November 2003), and also
serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Han
graduated from the People’s University in 1994 with a degree in
management. Mr. Han began his career in Metallurgy in 1984 when
he was employed as a deputy mine manager and mine manager of
Han’erzhuang Iron Mine. Mr. Han has in-depth industry knowledge
and 31 years of extensive operational and managerial experience
in the iron and steel industry. Mr. Han was awarded the honorary
title of “Hebei Metallurgy Top Ten Man”, “Outstanding Entrepreneur
of Hebei Province”, “Excellent Privately-owned Enterprises
Entrepreneur in Hebei Province” and “Economic Top Ten Men of
Honesty and Credibility in China” etc.. Mr. Han is the Vice Chairman
of the Metallurgy Chamber of All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Tong San
Chamber of Commerce and the Vice Chairman of Tangshan Charity
Federation. Mr. Han was also the 9" and 11" representative of the
People’s Congress of Hebei Province, PRC. Mr. Han is the director
and the controlling shareholder of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Han Jingyuan is the
father of Mr. Han Li, the Executive Director, Deputy General Manager
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Jun, aged 53, is an Executive Director (appointed on 23
December 2003), Executive Deputy General Manager and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhu graduated in 2001 from a
graduate programme of the Communist Party School in Hebei
Province with a diploma in management. Prior to working in the
steel industry, Mr. Zhu worked for 10 years as deputy director of
Qianxi County Chemical Fertilizer Factory which was based in Qianxi
County, Hebei Province. Mr. Zhu joined Jinxi Iron Factory in 1992
and later served as deputy director. Mr. Zhu has had 23 years
of working experience in the iron and steel industry. Mr. Zhu is a
minority shareholder of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Shen Xiaoling, aged 56, is an Executive Director (appointed
on 1 July 2005) of the Company and also serves as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained a diploma in
management from the Hebei Province Communist Party School in
2001. Before joining the Group, Mr. Shen was the head of China
Construction Bank Luanxian Sub-branch. Mr. Shen also had 5 years
experience acting as the Head of China Construction Bank Qianxi
Sub-branch and more than 6 years of experience as the deputy head
of Bank of China Qianxi Sub-branch. Mr. Shen has been the deputy
general manager of Jinxi Limited during the period January 2002
to October 2015. Mr. Shen was redesignated as the Chairman of
Supervisory Board of Jinxi Limited since October 2015. Mr. Shen is
a minority shareholder of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Hao, aged 50, is an Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 21 November 2007). Mr. Zhu graduated at Tianjin
Nankai University and obtained his Master degree in accounting from
the University of New South Wales in Australia. Mr. Zhu is a senior
economist in China.

Mr. Han Li, aged 29, is an Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 7 February 2012). Mr. Han joined the Group in 2009
as the assistant to the Financial Controller of the Company. He was
the executive assistant to Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and also currently serves as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He also assists the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company managing the daily operations
of the Group. Currently, Mr. Han is the 12" representative of the
People’s Congress of Hebei Province, PRC and 17" representative
of People’s Congress of the Communist Youth League of Ching;
he was awarded 13 mEEFAFHREBAY (Enterprise Brand
Special Contribution Character) and FFEHEI 2012 FEFZE N A
Yy - P EIETREIR IR B T REIFTIE L (The Harmonious China 2012
Influential People’s Award in Energy Saving). Mr. Han is the son of
Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
the substantial shareholders (within the meaning of the Part XV of
the SFO) (holding approximately 35.70% of the issued shares of the
Company) of the Company.

Mr. Han Li was appointed as the Deputy General Manager and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on 8 December 2016.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ondra Otradovec, aged 48, is a Non-executive Director of
the Company (re-appointed on 16 January 2015). Mr. Otradovec
graduated from State University of New York in Stony Brook with
a Bachelor degree in Finance. Mr. Otradovec is the Global Head of
Mergers & Acquisitions at ArcelorMittal (a substantial shareholder
of the Company). Since 2003, Mr. Otradovec has been responsible
for Mergers & Acquisitions at ArcelorMittal and has closely been
involved in a large number of acquisitions, mergers and divestments
undertaken by the company. Mr. Otradovec was also involved in
the acquisition of Hunan Valin Steel Tube & Wire Company and
served as a director of Hunan Valin Iron and Steel Company Limited
(a company listed in Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Previously,
he worked at HSBC Investment Bank, and was responsible for
corporate finance work in emerging markets. During this period, he
worked with Mittal Steel on the acquisition of Nova Hut in Czech
Republic and other steel companies. Mr. Otradovec acted as a Non-
executive Director of the Company from 2 January 2009 to 15 July
2013.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis, aged 52, is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 28 years of experience in
auditing, taxation, corporate internal control and governance,
acquisition and financial advisory, corporate restructuring and
liquidation, family trust and wealth management. He is currently
an Independent Non-executive Director (“INED”) and chairman of
the audit committee and remuneration committee and member
of nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is also an
INED of Digital China Holdings Limited, Wai Kee Holdings Limited,
Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited, Greenheart
Group Limited, GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (appointed on 1
April 2016), Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd (appointed
on 23 June 2016), China New Higher Education Group Limited
(appointed on 20 March 2017), Hilong Holding Limited (appointed
on 24 March 2017), and the shares of these companies are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Wong is the managing director of Union Alpha
C.P.A. Limited and a director of Union Alpha CAAP Certified Public
Accountants Limited, both are professional accounting firms, and a
Founding Director and member of Francis M. C. Wong Charitable
Foundation Limited, a charitable institution. Previously, Mr. Wong
worked for KPMG, an international accounting firm for 6 years and
the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited for 2 years. Mr.
Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a certified tax adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and a
fellow member of the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors.
Mr. Wong holds a master degree in management (&2 &5 1)
conferred by Guangzhou Jinan University (B /1 25 A 22, the PRC.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wang Tianyi, aged 70, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (appointed on 7 February 2012). He is
currently the executive vice president of The Chinese Society For
Metals. Mr. Wang has over 43 years of extensive experience in
the steel industry. Mr. Wang studied metallurgical machinery in 1t
RIMEERT (Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering) (now
known as 3t R EHE A EZ: University of Science and Technology of
Beijing) from 1965 and graduated in 1970. He then worked at HB S
3 i 5= = B R & 1T 7 (Handan Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited) (“Handan IS Group”) from 1970 to 1995 and held various
management and professional positions, included the position of a
technician, deputy factory manager and executive deputy general
manager. From 1995 to 2008, Mr. Wang re-designated and worked
at EILMEEBE AR E (T2 5] (Tangshan Iron and Steel Group
Company Limited) (“Tangshan IS Group”) as the chairman and
managing director. From 2005 to 2011, he was also the deputy
chairman and managing director of & il R/EREB A BRETA
7] (Shougang Jingtang Iron and Steel Company Limited). From July
2008 to August 2011, he acted as the vice chairman of JA 1t $
EBEERET A7 (Hebei Iron and Steel Group Company Limited)
(“HBIS Group”). HBIS Group was established after the merger of
Tangshan IS Group and Handan IS Group on 30 June 2008.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wang Bing, aged 51, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company (appointed on 15 July 2016). Mr. Wang graduated
from Peking University with a Bachelor degree in Law in 1986 and
obtained a Doctor degree in International Law from the Research
Institute of Hiroshima University in 1995. Mr. Wang has over 21 years
of experience in practicing law. In 1986, Mr. Wang joined Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security of the People’s Republic
of China, then worked for the Policy Research Office. He worked at
Zhong Lun Law Firm from July 1995 to May 1998. Mr. Wang joined
Beijing W&H Law Firm since May 1998 and currently, he is the Senior
Partner of Beijing W&H Law Firm. Mr. Wang is qualified to practice
law in PRC. Mr. Wang was once the Independent Director of Shanxi
Lanhua Sci-tech Venture Company Limited from May 2003 to May
2009 and Fujian Guanhong Holding Company Limited from May
2009 to May 2011. He is currently an Independent Director of Shanxi
Tianji Coal Chemical Group Company Limited since May 2008 and
Shangdong SINO-AGRI United Biotechnology Company Limited
since January 2016. In addition, Mr. Wang acted an external Director
of Beijing Fashion Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as
“Beijing Textile Holding Company Limited”) which is a wholly-owned
company of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of People’s Government of Beijing Municipality since
February 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Lifeng, aged 40, is the deputy chairman, legal representative
and general manager of Jinxi Limited. Mr. Yu began his career
in 1995 when he was employed as the sales supervisor of Han’s
erzhuang Iron Mine, and joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Yu has been
awarded the honorary title of “Model Worker of the National Steel
Industry” [ 2 B8 T3 451K |, “Outstanding Secretary of
Party Committee of the National Enterprises” [ 2 B> % EFE
ZZ£5 | and “Artisan of Private Enterprise of China Chamber of
Commerce for Metallurgical Enterprises” [ 286 & i 4 50 8
TIF]in 2016.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Yu Jianshui, aged 49, is the general manager of Hebei Jinxi
Iron and Steel Group Special Steel Company Limited and was the
general manager of Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Zhengda
Iron and Steel Company Limited. Mr. Yu was graduated at Hebei
Polytechnic University in steel metallurgy and obtained a MBA from
University of Northern Virginia in June 2009. He joined the Group
after graduation until May 2005 and was employed as the deputy
general executive manager of Shanxi Province Xiaoyi City Chengcai
Iron and Steel Company in May 2005. He then re-joined the Group
in April 2006. He has been awarded County Technological Selected
Talent (B2FHZIRE A ), Ten Outstanding Youths in the County
(BT R#EEH B F), Outstanding Youth in Post of Tangshan City (/&
I S FrAIAETF ), Workers’ Model in Hebei Province Ga4b % 45
E)EE ), The First Class Honour of Technological Improvement in
Tangshan City (J& LI T EHY#E 25— 48), The Third Class Honour
of Technological Improvement in Hebei Province (i 1b& B 4
—E18),

Mr. Lam Pak Kan, aged 37, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a Bachelor’s
degree of Business Administration in Accounting in 2001. Mr. Lam
is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) charterholder. Mr. Lam has
over 16 years of experience auditing and financial management in
accounting firm, asset management company and listed companies.
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ &E88|E

The Company is committed to sound corporate governance
practices designed to promote greater transparency, investor
confidence and the continued development of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) with the best long term interest of the
Group and value enhancement for all shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) as our ultimate goal. The Company also believes
that sound corporate governance practices benefit the Group’s
employees and the community in which the Group operates.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(“CG CODE”)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied the
Principles and Code Provisions with the CG Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2016, except for the deviation with explanation disclosed
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)

During the year under review, the Board comprised the following
Directors and the composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun (Executive Deputy General Manager
and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Han Li
(appointed as the Deputy General Manager
and Chief Financial Officer on 8 December 2016)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ondra Otradovec

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping
(resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 20176)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
It should act in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders
at all times. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors
the performance and activities of the senior management.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for the day
to day operations of the Company whereas the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of financial and management reporting to the Board
and Shareholders as well as to provide a balanced composition
in the Board so that there is a strong independent element on the
Board.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 26 to 31.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

=  Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof;

= Approval of dividends;

= Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;

= Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance;

= Monitoring the performance of the management;

= Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and disposal
of assets and other material transactions.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

Except for Mr. Han Li, who is the son of Mr. Han Jingyuan, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business,
family relationship among the other Directors. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgments.

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy
that have been approved. During the year under review, eight
Board meetings were held and the principal business transacted
included approving interim and annual results and reports,
assessing business development and business performance and
implementation as well as proposals to restore public float. The
attendance record of each Director for the year ended 31 December
2016 is set out as follows:

Board

BER

Mr. Han Jingyuan BHURSL A
Mr. Zhu Jun KERAE
Mr. Shen Xiaoling TLREEIS S A
Mr. Zhu Hao Vpirtas
Mr. Han Li BhRE
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec 7t 4
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BMORESE
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRERAE
Mr. Zhou Guoping B e

(resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 2016)

FEokscaE

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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Number of Board Meeting
Attended/Eligible Attended
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EEREeRLE
BEREERE
Regular Ad hoc 45l
3/4 4/4
4/4 3/4
4/4 4/4
3/4 4/4
4/4 4/4
1/4 2/4
3/4 2/4
2/4 1/4
0/1 2/2
2/2 1/2
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection by any Director.

A.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Board has Chairman to provide leadership to the Board
in terms of establishing policies and business directions and
monitor the daily operation of the Group.

Mr. Han Jingyuan currently serves as the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes
that there is no immediate need to separate the roles of
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
because the role of chief executive officer/general manager of
the Company’s major operating subsidiaries are performed by
other persons.

The Board will consider the segregation of the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
light of the future development of the operating activities or
businesses of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Company had three
Independent Non-executive Directors of whom Mr. Wong Man
Chung, Francis has appropriate professional qualifications
and experience in financial matters in compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

B.

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Following the resignation of Mr. Zhou Guoping (“Mr. Zhou”)
on 1 April 2016, the number of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company fell below the minimum number
required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Company no longer fulfils the requirement on
the minimum number of independent non-executive directors
for the formation of audit committee stipulated under Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules.

On 15 July 2016, the Company appointed Mr. Wang Bing
as Independent Non-executive Director, a member of
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. Following the appointment of
Mr. Wang Bing, the composition of the Board comprises five
Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. As a result, the number
of independent non-executive directors and audit committee
members of the Company meet with the requirements under
Rule 3.10(1), Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that notwithstanding
anything therein, the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be
subject to the retirement by rotation or be taken into account
in determining the number of the Directors to retire in each
year and the Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall not be taken into account
in determining which particular Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation. The Company will
consider amending the Bye-laws to comply with the Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code in the future.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

C.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(continued)

All the Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. Currently, Mr. Han Jingyuan,
Mr. Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Zhu Hao and Mr. Han
Li being the Executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years. Mr. Ondra Otradovec being the Non-
executive Director is appointed for a fixed term of two years.
All Independent Non-executive Directors, including, Mr. Wong
Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Zhou Gouping
(resigned on 1 April 2016) and Mr. Wang Bing (appointed on
15 July 2016) are appointed for a fixed term of one year. All
the Directors are still subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.

In accordance to the Bye-laws 87 of the Company and the
Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, Mr. Shen Xiaoling and
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis will retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance to the Bye-law 86(2) of the Company, Mr.
Wang Bing being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

As Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis has served the Company for
more than 9 years, his further appointment should be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders.
By taking into account his independent status in the Board
in the past years, and that he is not involved in the day-to-
day management of the Company, the Board believes he is
still independent and should be re-elected as the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Director; Such reason shall be set
out in the circular of the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company for Shareholders’ consideration.

Except for the change in the Board as mentioned above,
during the year under review, no other Director was appointed
to fill any causal vacancy or otherwise.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

D.

Responsibilities of Directors and Company Secretary

All Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s major
business activities, induction into their responsibilities and
duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities has been provided by the Company to cover potential
legal actions against Directors and Officers.

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary

Each newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments in
which the Group conducts its business to the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary
(continued)

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code. All Directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant for the year ended
31 December 2016. The Company will arrange internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
provided reading materials on corporate governance matters
and update on the Listing Rules to all Directors for their
reference and studying. Besides, Mr. Ondra Otradovec and
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis also attended other seminars
and training sessions arranged by other professional firms/
institutions. Record of training each Director has received
for the year ended 31 December 2016 were kept by the
Company.

China Oriental Group Company Limited V23 Jy 52 [F % B A FR 2 7]

COMPLAINT

=

EER(EERD®

o

BEMNRAWMEZEIE @

EEAHEBTREESRTRIEALS
MWTWHX HE-_ZT—RF
+-—A=+—BLFE 2EESE
HE L MBEE KB HE S M
REZIHEBEREERE  UHRRESHT
BEE2mMENNMIEENERLT
MEEREHEE - AQRHER
BERAESLTHRNTAGR - I
MEBEETEEEME - ARQF]
HEFBEES2MBAEIIRE -
BABAREIN o

HE-_Z—X"Ft+=-_A=+—A81t
FEARN ARBIEEEEBESRIRMH
ERCEETAEENMEM R R E
MRBEFHER  AEEELRE
N 4HEE o 1tES) - Ondra Otradovec %t
EREXRIEENZBEMEEN
8,/ BTN E M 2 R E
RIZ e RAFIERGFEHEZZ—X
F+_A=Zt+RHIFESESE
RIEFIHECER



The Dumping and Subsidizing of
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F.

Public Attachment 11

COMPLAINT

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &E88|E

Training and Support for Directors and Company Secretary F.

(continued)

The individual training record of each Director received for the

year ended 31 December 2016 is summarised as below:

Participation in Continuous Professional Development

Programme in 2016

Directors

B

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Zhu Jun

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao

Mr. Han Li

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ondra Otradovec

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping

(resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing

(appointed on 15 July 2016)

Reading Regulatory
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development, directors’
duties or other

Updates relevant topics
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During the year under review, Mr. Lam Pak Kan, the Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company, took more
than 15 hours of professional training to update his skills and

knowledge in compliance with

Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued) EER(EER] @
G. Directors’ Securities Transactions G EBZBHRD

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own
code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year
under review.

H.  Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees whose authorities
and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(1) Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) has been established since 2005 with
specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee (which were available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company) have included those specific duties as set
out in the Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary. Pursuant to
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required,
amongst other things, to consider and recommend
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors and to approve their
remuneration, to review the interim and annual financial
statements, to review the Group’s financial controls,
internal controls and risk management system including
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programmes and budget, and to
consider any findings of major investigation of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response. The Audit
Committee should meet at least twice each year and
when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.

Board Committees (continued)

(7)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit
Committee comprised three Independent Non-executive
Directors for the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 March
2016 and 15 July 2016 to 31 December 2016, namely
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis as the Chairman of the
Audit Committee during the year under review and Mr.
Wang Tianyi and Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April
2016) and Mr. Wang Bing (appointed on 15 July 2016)
as the members of the Audit Committee, in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, four meetings of
Audit Committee were held. The attendance record for
each member is set out as follows:
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Number of Audit
Committee Meeting
Audit Attended/
Committee members Eligible Attended
ERZEgERLE
EREEENE BEREERH
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BN RAE 4/4
Mr. Wang Tianyi FRELE 4/4
Mr. Zhou Guoping JAB & 1/2
(resigned on 1 April 2016) (R=ZF—NFMH—HEFFHF)

Mr. Wang Bing FREE 2/2

(appointed on 15 July 2016)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 and has also discussed the
internal control, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee is of
the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standard, the Listing Rules and the statutory
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made in this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

@

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”) has been established
since 2005 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
(which were available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company) have included the duties
which are set out in the Code Provision B.1.2 of the
CG Code, with appropriate modifications when
necessary. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were amended on 23 March 2012 in order to
comply with the amendment of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Remuneration
Committee is required, amongst other things, (i) to
determine, with delegated responsibility from the
Board, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors; (i) to review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; (iv) to review and approve the
compensation payable to the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; and (v) to ensure
that no Director is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee should
meet at least once a year and when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

&

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee comprised Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, Mr. Wong Man Chung,
Francis, as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, Mr. Han Jingyuan and the remaining
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
namely, Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned
on 1 April 2016) and Mr. Wang Bing (appointed on
15 July 2016) as the members of the Remuneration
Committee in compliance with the Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, three meetings
of Remuneration Committee were held. The attendance
record of each member is set out as follow:

BEER(EERD®

H ZZ=ZE2@m

2

FINE S 2 ()

REBEFEER - FHEESE
RARBBULIFAITESTENX
RAEE(FMEESXE) K
RAEERIFEREFNTE
PRAUR ST A AN A B ELERAIE
MIFHITER BIERERL
£ ABRFEER-F—N
FAA—HET) RTKEE
(RZF—NFLHTHA%E
ZE) RFMEEENX
8 e LmRAIF3.25G 2
HE °

HEZT—XF+ZA=1—
HIEFE  FME8 e 8T
ZIREEH o B HFERER
W

Number of
Remuneration Committee
Remuneration Meeting Attended/
Committee members Eligilbe Attended
FMZEEeERHE

FHEEERE BERHERHY
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BYXCRAEA 3/3
Mr. Han Jingyuan BRUREA 2/2
Mr. Wang Tianyi TRERE 3/3
Mr. Zhou Guoping AL 1/1

(resigned on 1 April 2016) (R=ZF—NFPH—HEFHE)
Mr. Wang Bing EkdgkHE

(appointed on 15 July 2016) (R=ZF—NF+LH+AHEZT) 1/1

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the Note 47
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

@

)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The biographies of members of the senior management
team at the date of this annual report are disclosed in the
section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographical Information” in this annual report. Pursuant
to the Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
emoluments of the senior management (excluding
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
within the following bands:

ARE1TTZEARE1,000,0007
(18751154 541%7)

RMB ¥1 - RMB ¥1,000,000
(approximately HK$ 1 to HKS 1,154,541)
RMB ¥1,000,001 - RMB ¥2,000,000
(approximately HKS 1,154,542 10 HK$ 2,300.082) (411,154 54278 T 2 2,309,082 8 )
Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee) has been established on 23 March 2012
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee (which were
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company) have included the duties which are set
out in the Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to
(i) review the Board composition, develop and formulate
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of directors; (i) make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of directors;
(iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and (iv) recommend the measurable
objectives for achieving diversity of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

H.  Board Committees (continued)

S

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee will taking into consideration
a candidate’s qualification, experience, expertise and
knowledge, the requirements applicable to the Company
and the structure and composition of the Board,
identify, review and nominate with diligence and care
candidates suitably qualified as Board members before
making recommendations to the Board for their final
appointment.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
comprised the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, Mr. Han Jingyuan, as the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company namely, Mr.
Wong Man Chung, Francis, Mr. Wang Tianyi, Mr. Zhou
Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016) and Mr. Wang
Bing (appointed on 15 July 2016) as the members of
the Nomination Committee in compliance with Code
Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, three meetings
of Nomination Committee were held. The attendance
record of each member is set out as follows:

Nomination
Committee members

REZEBHE

Mr. Han Jingyuan BRUR A
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BEXRAEAE
Mr. Wang Tianyi FREEE
Mr. Zhou Guoping BB S A

(resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 2016)

FkEE
(R—=

BEER(EERD @
H =EEZE8gw®w
(B) WEEZEZE)

RERBEENANESREUES
ZEREREERERA - BE
BIREANZEBE - &% B&
KNG - AN R Z B R E A
MREZRZRBERAK - FIR
#al - EB MR ABEESR
RAETESRKE 21RE
A °

REBEFERN BEREEEE
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TERMELE(REEZES
TE) RARBH B IETT
Ex MEXReEs EX
BELE AEFPELER-F
—NFA—HEE) R EK
FER-_FE-—NFLATA
HEZAL) HRREEES
KB BEFEERERRAIZST
AR E AL IR ZFE °

HE-_ZT-—RF+-A=+—
HIEFE  REZESRT=
REE - BB 2 PR
HEnR

Number of
Nomination Committee
Meeting Attended/
Eligible Attended
REZEEERLE
BFERHERH

2/2
3/3
3/3
0/0

(K= F—A M A —ABHE)

2/2
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 30 August 2013 with a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development of the Group. The Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy annually. During the year under review,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board’s composition
(including the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service) which has been disclosed on pages 26 to 31 in this
annual report and considered the current Board’s composition is
appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board had developed and
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and review the compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems based on the confirmation made by
the senior management and inputs from the Audit Committee. The
Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, are effective and adequate during the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Risk Management and Internal Controls (continued)

The Board has an overall and ongoing responsibility for the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewing their
effectiveness. It is acknowledged that risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material adverse
change or damage.

The Board, through its risk oversight role, ensures that the senior
management establishes an effective risk management, consistent
with the Group’s strategy and risk appetite. The senior management
establishes risk management policies and internal control processes
to identify, evaluate and manage risks. Each subsidiary implements
such policies and processes in the daily operations and reports
significant risks identified to the senior management regularly.
The senior management assesses and evaluates these significant
risks reported then allocates sufficient resources to address these
risks and monitors the risk management status reported from the
relevant subsidiary from time to time. The senior management will
communicate the risk management and internal control findings to
the Board for its assessment of the effectiveness of the relevant risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

The Finance and Internal Audit Department of the Company reviews
material internal control aspects of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk management
function, duties which include (i) reviewing and reporting on internal
and operational controls; (i) following-up on the suggestions made
by external auditors; (jii) ongoing monitoring and reviews on different
operating cycles; and (iv) special review of areas of concern identified
by senior management. It reports to the Chief Operating Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer from time to time, and also reports the
findings to the Audit Committee at least twice a year and on ad-hoc
basis. The findings are communicated with the senior management
and actions are taken to resolve defects as and when identified. No
material internal control defects were identified during the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Risk Management and Internal Controls (continued)

Under code provision C.2.5 and the related notes of the CG Code,
the Company should have an internal audit function which generally
carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Company’s internal audit function is merged
with the finance function during the year ended 31 December 2016.
During the year, the Group conducted a review on the need for
setting up an independent internal audit department. Taking into
account the size and complexity of the operations of the Group, the
Company considers that the existing organisation structure and the
close supervision of the senior management could provide sufficient
internal control and risk management for the Group. The Audit
Committee and the Board regularly review the effectiveness of the
internal control systems and the risk management of the Group. The
Board will review the need to set up an independent internal audit
function on an annual basis.

When the Board and the Audit Committee express concerns over
the risk management and internal control matters of the Group,
the Finance and Internal Audit Department of the Company
will investigate and communicate the findings with and make
recommendations to the senior management. The Finance and
Internal Audit Department of the Company also maintains an
effective communication with the external auditor of the Company on
the Group’s internal control system during interim review and annual
audit.

The Group has a policy for handling and dissemination of inside
information including relevant control processes and safeguards.
The processes and safeguards are implemented as needed by
the relevant department heads and management involved in the
handling and dissemination of inside information.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditor

The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 to reflect a true and
fair view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position and
financial performance and cash flows for the year.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016, the generally accepted accounting principles in
Hong Kong, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards are adopted, with consistent use of
appropriate accounting policies, for making reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates. The financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report, the external auditor of the Group is PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Fees of auditing services and non-auditing services (including interim
review and taxation services) provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers
and its member firms of the same international network for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were approximately RMB 4.05 million and
RMB 0.14 million respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report, PricewaterhouseCoopers and its member firms of the same
international network provided non-audit services mainly on interim
review and taxation services. These non-audit services are engaged
only as they are more effective or economical than those available
from other service providers and will not constitute adverse impact
on the independence of the external auditor. The nature and ratio of
annual fees to external auditor for non-audit services and for audit
services in 2016 have been scrutinised by the Audit Committee.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong (Suites 901-2 &
10, 9th floor, Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong) for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require a special general meeting (the “SGM”) to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. The written requisition must
state the purposes of the SGM, signed by the Shareholder(s)
concerned and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of those Shareholders. If the requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a
SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid, the Shareholders concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as
requested. Shareholder(s) of the Company holding () not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100
Shareholders, can submit a written request stating the resolution
intended to be moved at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at a particular general meeting. The written request/
statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and
deposited at the Company’s registered office and its principal
office in Hong Kong (Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th floor, Great Eagle
Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong) for the attention
of the Company Secretary, not less than six weeks before the
AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution
and not less than one week before the general meeting in the
case of any other requisition. If the written request is in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to include the resolution
in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to circulate the statement for
the general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s) concerned
have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the
Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving
the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM
or the statement will not be circulated for the general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post to the Hong Kong principal office at
Suites 901-2 & 10, 9th floor, Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

As mentioned before, over 90% of the operations of the Group
are carried in the Mainland China. Any change in the policy and
procedure in the Mainland China may have adverse effects on the
Group’s operation and results.

Also, the introduction of new legislation and rules by the Stock
Exchange, Securities and Futures Commission and other regulatory
bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes in market
conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating results of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Shareholders of the Company. A Shareholders Communication
Policy was adopted on 23 March 2012 to ensure that Shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company. The policy is
posed on the Company’s website. The Company has established
various channels of communications with its Shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a
timely manner. To promote effective communications, the Company
also maintains a website at www.chinaorientalgroup.com, where
updated information on the Company’s business developments
and operations and other information are posted, including all the
regulatory announcements relating to the Company and the poll
results on the business day following the general meeting (if any).

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for exchange
of views between the Shareholders of the Company and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, the Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors), chairman or members of the committees
and senior management of the Group and where applicable
are available to answer questions at the general meeting of the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The rights of the Shareholders of the Company and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolution at general meeting are contained
in the Company’s Bye-laws. Details of such right to demand a
poll and the poll procedure are included in all circulars to the
Shareholders of the Company which will call for a general meeting
and will be explained during the proceedings of the meeting.

Upon the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed at general
meeting will be voted by poll. The poll voting results will be posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.chinaorientalgroup.com) immediately after the
relevant general meetings.

Under the Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

The attendance record of the 2016 AGM held on 27 May 2016 for
each of the individual Director was as follows:
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued) BEAREZE®E»)

Board Attendance of

BER H B8
2016 AGM
—8-AF

BREBFXE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Han Jingyuan BEURESE 11

Mr. Zhu Jun KERE 0/1

Mr. Shen Xiaoling 3=t 0/1

Mr. Zhu Hao REEE 11

Mr. Han Li BNEE 0/1

Non-executive Director
FHITES
Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec %4 0/1

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIUFHTES

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BXRESE 1/1

Mr. Wang Tianyi ITRERE 0/1

Mr. Zhou Guoping BB 0/0
(resigned on 1 April 2016) (R=F—NFP H—HEHT)

Mr. Wang Bing EkEE 0/0
(appointed on 15 July 2016) (R=F—NF+H+HHEZE)

The Company will continue to enhance communication and KN BI G E R G R 2 A ER M
relationship with its Shareholders. Enquiries from the Shareholders of R XRRIRR 2 ERGSERI
the Company are dealt with in an informative and timely manner. ERRIE o
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OVERVIEW

The Group is always committed to performing its social responsibility
as an enterprise. Apart from strictly abiding by national laws and
regulations, the Group has reduced emissions from and energy
consumption in the steel production process by continuously
investing resources into production facilities, so as to minimise the
impact of the production process on the environment and strive
for being an environmentally friendly enterprise. For the sake of
informing the stakeholders of policies and measures of as well
as performance in environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
aspects, the Group prepared the ESG report in accordance with the
ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

This report covers the year ended 31 December 2016. Currently,
the Group’s revenue is mainly from the steel business which is
dominated by sales of self-manufactured steel products, accounting
for approximately 88% of gross sales of the Group for the year.
Production of such steel products is mainly conducted by its
subsidiaries such as Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited (“Jinxi Limited”), Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Special
Steel Company Limited (“Jinxi Special Steel”), Hebei Jinxi Iron and
Steel Group Zhengda Iron and Steel Company Limited (“Zhengda
Iron and Steel”), Tianjin Oriental Jiangtian Section Steel Sales
Company Limited (“Oriental Jiangtian”) and Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan
Cold Rolled Sheet Company Limited (“Jinxi Jinlan”) and the content
below of this report is mainly related to Jinxi Limited and Jinxi Special
Steel.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group’s growth and flourish development rely on its operating
strategies, which gear towards environmental protection,
sustainability and are favorable to the Group’s stakeholders, and
on its ability to overcome complicated challenges. The Group pays
high attention to environmental protection, efficient use of resources
and enhancement of efficiency for minimising the impacts of the
production process to the environment. By continuously investing
resources into production facilities, the Group aims to reduce
emissions from and energy consumption of its manufacturing
process. The Group continues to operate its business in a moral
and responsible manner, so as to distinguish itself in various
assessments other than financial data.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

The Group also strictly complies with relevant environmental
protection laws and regulations including the “Environment
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Appraising
of Environment Impacts”, Hebei Industrial Furnace Air Pollutant
Emission Standards 2012, Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for
I[ron Smelt Industry, Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Steel
Smelt Industry, Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Sintering
and Pelletizing from Iron and Steel Industry, Emission Standard
of Air Pollutants for Steel Rolling Industry, the “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
Discharge Standard of Water Pollutants for Iron and Steel Industry.
The Group also formulates certain policies such as Environmental
Protecting Measures, Administrations of Environmental Supervision
and Management Personnel and Administrations of Environmental
Protection Training, so as to ensure the compliance with relevant
laws and regulations.

A1. EMISSIONS

The exhaust emissions of the Group mainly comprise dust, nitrogen
oxides and sulphur oxides, etc, of which, dust is generated from
materials transportation, raw materials treatment for iron-smelting,
firing process in sintering, blast furnace plants and converters while
nitrogen oxides and sulphur oxides are mainly generated from the
firing process in sintering.

Waste water produced from the manufacturing process consists of
various contaminants like SS, BODG, petroleum and heavy metals.

The major solid wastes generated from the Group’s production

include dust, water slag, steel slag, de-sulphur gypsum, refractory
materials and oily contaminants, etc.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1. EMISSIONS (continued)

Exhaust emissions

The Group endeavors to allocate resources to improve its production

environment and facilities. Various production facilities put into

operation are equipped with environmental protection equipments

for reducing emission and meeting the relevant national standards.

The measures for dust include:

1/

2/

3/

4/

5/

To set up a fully closed stock ground to eliminate dust pollution
and disorganised discharge of pollutants from the stock
ground;

To set up wind breaker and dust filter net in the stock ground
and clean the wind breaker and dust filter net with water
periodically;

To place precipitator treatment equipments in the sources of
pollution, and qualified third party operators will carry out repair
and maintenance, to ensure efficient operation of all types
of precipitator treatment equipments through professional
maintenance;

Vehicles equipped with special sweeping and precipitators
and sprinkling cars will sweep and clean continuously all sub-
zone passages of the stock ground and the main transport
roads. These effectively prevent dust pollution caused by the
rolling over of the delivery vehicles of the stock ground onto the
roads;

To improve and optimize the production facilities to reach
the result of dust elimination, all types of production facilities
in operation are equipped with environmental protection and
treatment equipments in order to reach the national standard.
For instance, sintering machines and blast furnaces are
equipped with electrostatic precipitators, all feeder points are
equipped with bag precipitators, skills of gravity dust removal
plus bag precipitator with dry-dedusting technology are used
for the gas purification of blast furnaces, all steel refinery plants
are equipped with the triple dust elimination system etc.; and
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1. EMISSIONS (continued)

Exhaust emissions (continued)

6/  The sintering machines and vertical furnaces are equipped with
desulfurization system and online inspection system.

The average discharge of dust after the transformation project of
electrostatic precipitators under the troughs of the blast furnaces
of Jinxi Limited in operation was approximately 7 mg/standard
cubic metre, which was lower than the national standard of 10 mg/
standard cubic metre. The smoke and dust collection rate at the dust
suction vent was raised to approximately 90%. The dust powder
and other exhaust emissions discharged during the production
processes reach the discharge standard.

Sewage discharge

In order to solve the problems of external discharge of production
water, pollution of the environment and wastage of resources
caused by the sewage generated by the production, the Group
invested and constructed two sewage treatment stations with
maximum daily treatment capacity of 50,000 tonne and one sewage
treatment station with maximum daily treatment capacity of 10,000
cubic metre in Jinxi Limited and Jinxi Special Steel respectively.
All the sewage is reused after centralised treatment in the sewage
treatment stations. All the post-treatment water which reaches the
standard is used in the production again, so that the daily volume of
new water consumed decreased substantially. The industrial sewage
achieved zero discharge.

Solid waste

The Group properly treats the wastes produced with the following
comprehensive treatment measures to reduce the effect on the
environment:

1/ Wastes containing iron are recycled for sintering comprehensive
utilisation, the steel slag after treatment is used in the
production in the converter furances;

2/ Refractory materials are collected and treated by recycling
companies, and the slag and solid wastes (water slag and
gypsum, etc.) are sold to the other cement plants or used as
other raw materials for production;
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1. EMISSIONS (continued)

Solid waste (continued)

3/

4/

The volume of waste mineral oils generated is reduced by
filtering and repeated use measures; and

In accordance with the national environmental protection
requirements, state professional factories with the relevant
qualifications and treatment capabilities are entrusted to carry
out detoxification treatment of waste mineral oils which cannot
be utilised so as to comply with the requirements of hazardous
waste disposal.

A2. RESOURCE UTILISATION

Energy saving

The Group included environmental protection management in the

scope of management appraisal, directly linking the performance

with the objectives. It monitored through the economic indicators,

consumption indicators, etc. to lift the production level as well as

reducing consumption.

The Group has always been dedicated to investing resources and

optimising all production facilities to reduce the consumption of

energy:

1/

2/

Upgrade and technique transformation project of blast
furnaces: the transformation of the steel rolling heating
furnaces with the smart burning technique in order to reduce
gas consumption, the investment in dynamic nitrogen
compression system to save the consumption of energy, the
main air exhaustion machine (/&) reduced electricity
consumption, the integrated transformation of the water
system of the oxygen production and electricity generation
module achieved direct integrated re-utilisation of circulating
discharged water to reduce the pressure of sewage treatment,
and lower the consumption of water;

The use and transformation into energy saving equipments
(such as electric machine, air exhaustion machine, water pump
station, etc.) effectively saved electricity; and
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
A2. RESOURCE UTILISATION
Energy saving (continued)

3/ Billet heat transmission project: the Company realised the
heat transmission of the steel rolling production line, which
largely lowered the consumption of gas. It also restrained the
excessive consumption of energy medium of all units by setting
and allocating energy medium consumption indicators. With
the principle of reasonable allocation and reasonable use,
these lowered the overall energy consumption volume.

Jinxi Limited carried out the transformation of the back-up blower (&
1#), the transformation into high-oxygen-content for the blast furnace
(S EH R E 4 ) saved over 10,000 units of electricity every day.

The Group was dedicated to recycling energy during the production
processes in order to reduce consumption and better use of energy.
These included the recovery of residual heat of the steam from
the converters in the refinery plants for use in each phase of the
production and the electric power generation workshop, the ratio
of electricity generated by the Group now reached approximately
60%; the water slag phase of the refinery plants made use of the
residue-cleaning water for heat exchange to provide sources of heat
for household use of the plant, achieved the maximum utilisation
of heat sources. Besides, the gas pipelines of hot air stoves were
transformed with the use of gas from blast furnace changing to the
use of mixed gas, increasing the gas recovery utilisation rate and
lowering the costs. Besides, the transformation of the gas pipe
network solved the problem of striking a balance of gas between the
new and old systems, which increased the gas utilisation rate.

A3. ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group has been monitoring the potential impact brought to the
environment. In order to mitigate the impact of the environment and
natural resources upon our operation, the Group has been carrying
out research and development on our products, it continued to
accelerate the pace of product structure adjustment, optimise the
production phase so as to further raise the level of energy saving and
environmental protection.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A3. ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES (continued)

On top of the above generated discharge matters and resources
utilisation, the Group actively reduced other major impact on the
environment, including the noises during the production operation.
In order to strengthen the control and reduce the impact brought
by noises, the Group already met the state regulations regarding
noises such as the “Background Noise Release Standards” by
increasing ancillary production equipments and other measures.
They included the setting up of factories for all types of large
facilities and workshops, installing noise reduction facilities (such
as oxygen production module and electricity generation module
etc) for production facilities and devices with loud noises, installing
sound-proof doors etc. for all electricity generation module, hot air
stove blower, oxygen production workshop which generate louder
noises, installing shock reduction and shock insulation equipments
for blower and water pump, etc. which generate louder noises, using
closed settings for the transfer of raw materials using closed transfer
corridor and feeder and other phases, adding sound-proof housing
for the saw machine etc. It also hired professional environmental
inspection companies to carry out on-site inspect to meet the
“Sound Environment Quality Standards”.

During 2016 Jinxi Limited also planned to install sound-proof
housing for the saw machine so that the noise will be less than 90
decibel. It was expected that this would be completed in 2017.

Resolving overcapacity

In 2016, the Chinese government successively issued the “Opinion
of the State Council on solving the overcapacity and overcoming
difficulties and achieving development for the iron and steel industry”,
the “Adjustment and upgrade plan for the iron and steel industry
(2016-2020)”, the “Notice of the State Council on the publication of
the “Thirteen Five-year Plan” energy saving and emission reduction
integrated working proposal” and other documents. The Group
actively cooperated with the resolving of overcapacity. At the
end of October 2016, Zhengda Iron and Steel, an indirectly non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group already followed the result
of negotiation of the Group and Tangshan City government, and
completed the shut down of one 500 cubic metre blast furnace and
one 60 tonnes converter furnace, eliminating approximately 600,000
tonnes steel production capacity. It was expected that during 2017
the remaining approximately 600,000 tonnes steel production
capacity would be eliminated and thereby completed the mission of
resolving the capacity issue.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report B - # 8k EAHE

B. SOCIAL

B1. EMPLOYEE

B1.1 Remuneration policy

The Group stressed the establishment of a remuneration system
which reflected the value and contribution of individuals, it
adequately mobilised the work initiative and creativity of the staff,
fostered the optimisation of staff structure and enhancement of the
level of skills and created an efficient team of staff. The principles for
the determination of remuneration are based on the enhancement
of efficiency (to closely link up the remuneration level and the overall
business results of the unit), fairess (criteria are based on the duties
of the positions, importance, degree of contribution, requirements
of the positions and the level of skills, work performance, number of
years of work in the present positions of the individual employees,
etc.) and motivation (to motivate the work initiative of the staff
by differentiation of promotion and salary grades). It also offered
appraisal for annual allowance, performance bonus, company prizes
etc. in order to enhance the initiative of employees.

B1.2 Staff contract

The Group strictly abided by the relevant labour laws and regulations
such as the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Employment Contract of the People’s Republic of China” and
the “Work Injury Regulations”, etc. It entered into, updated and
terminated the labour contracts in accordance with laws and
regulations to protect the legal rights of the employees.

B1.3 Staff recruitment

The Group attracted talents under the principles of fairness and
objectiveness, it made public recruitment via publishing recruitment
advertisement, using internet recruitment, campus recruitment,
recruitment in the labour market offices and head hunters, etc, and
made comprehensive assessment.
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B. SOCIAL (#)

B1. EMPLOYEE (continued)

B1.4 Staff promotion

The Group also emphasised the development of skills of the
employees and the effective allocation of human resources to
raise the efficiency level. It dedicated to provide a complete human
resources structure and a safe working environment for the
employees to make the best out of their strengths. The Group also
insisted on the incentive and assessment mechanism which linked
the performance of employees and their remuneration. It used the
performance assessment to optimise the human resources policy,
offered promotion opportunities to the employees, shared the
success of the companies with their employees.

B1.5 Working hours and holidays

The Group strictly controlled the working hours in accordance with
the legal requirements. It guaranteed that all over time work by the
employees were on a voluntary basis. The over time remuneration
was paid in full according to the local applicable labour laws.

The rest days of the employees of the Group are the public holidays
and the other holidays in accordance with the local laws and
regulations.

B1.6 Equal opportunities, diversification of employees and anti-
discrimination

The Group provided equal, fair and reasonable employment
opportunities for employees. The recruitment, wages, benefits
and promotion were all completely based on the work capabilities
of the employees concemned. It treated all the employees equally,
regardless their sexes, ages, races, bloodlines, colour of their skin,
nationalities, political preferences, religions, marital status, number of
children, being handicapped or not or any other factors not related
to the work. If a discriminatory behaviour was discovered, the Group
would examine according to the nature of the problem, and would
take disciplinary action to the person(s) making such discriminatory
behaviour.
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B. SOCIAL (#)

B1. EMPLOYEE (continued)

B1.7 Benefit policy

The staff benefits of the Group included all kinds of insurances
(including medical insurance scheme, pension scheme,
unemployment insurance scheme, childbearing insurance scheme
etc) were paid in full and on time in accordance with the requirements
of the state as well as bonus and the fair value of share option, etc.
Since July 2008, the Group introduced the work injury insurance and
has been paying 1.5% of the wages paid to the staff to the social
insurance department.

B1.8 Staff situation

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of approximately
11,900 full time employees and 1,200 temporary employees, which
was 3,000 persons less than 2015 in average, mainly due to the
shut down of some production lines and continuous optimisation of
production efficiency.

The ratios of employees in 2016 by contract type, sex and job nature
are as follows:

Contract type Sex
BRER M5l
9%\ 8%

N

91%

M Full time M Male
a7 3
Temporary employee Female
FRlF T z
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B2. HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group strictly followed the “Occupation Disease Prevention
Law”, “Safety Production Law”, etc., to strengthen the hygiene
awareness of the employees and promotion of occupational health
and formulate measures for a safe working environment.

More resources were used for the sources of occupational diseases
to improve all types of production facilities and techniques, such
as dust prevention and noise reduction, etc. These met the
requirements of protecting the occupational health of the employees;
sound-proof ear plugs were provided in the production environment,
SO as to reduce the harm of high degree of noises to the labourers,
to ensure that the contact level of noises was below the contact level
stated by the state.

The Group also determined the safety management responsibilities,
it made regular and ad hoc inspection of the safety measures of
products (such as the weight of products delivered and packaging,
the placing of the goods into the warehouse etc) and seriously
established the accountability of the staff concerned. It promoted
in full scale autonomous safety management work, set up the
safety patrol system, strictly executed the approval of dangerous
operation, organised all types of emergency drills, enhanced the
emergency rescue ability, continuously inspected and repaired and
safety management work of external parties in order to avoid the
occurrence of any safety incident.
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B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group extremely emphasised staff training and offered several
different training programmes for employees at all levels and from all
departments in order to enhance the professional and emergency
response abilities of the employees and enhance the education on
occupational safety. It arranged safety education for new employees
upon their commencement of work in the factories and only after
having passed the examinations, they would then work in their
positions under the guidance of coaches. The Group also conducted
safety education examination of all employees on a regular basis.
Following the development of business of the Group, the Group
actively provided focused training to the management and the
professional technical staff, including strengthening the training of
foremen, workshop officers to enhance the safety management
ability of group leads, workshop officers, strengthening the
theoretical and skill training of all job types (such as sintering, iron
refinery, steel refinery, steel rolling jobs etc.) and carrying out repair
and maintenance of the production facilities by the repair workers.
It also shared the training resources (such as the distribution of
staff manual) with the companies of the Group. In 2016, 100% of
the total staff of the production subsidiaries participated in safety
training, while approximately 75% of the total staff of the production
subsidiaries participated in technical training.

In order to continue strengthen the safety skill level and emergency
rescue ability of all members of the staff, through its active
arrangement of safety skill activities for them to participate, it laid
a solid foundation for the effective promotion of the emergency
rescue level of the Company. This effectively enhanced the overall
emergency rescue ability of the Company, which in tumn effectively
promoted the enhancement of the emergency rescue ability of the
employees at the lower level.

The training provided in 2016 included:

Jinxi Limited

1/ Workshop officer examination was held with an attendance of
711; foremen examination was arranged with an attendance of
866;

2/ A total of 279 persons in 11 sessions of re-assessment and
training of the special operational staff in electric work, electric

welding;
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B. SOCIAL ()
B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING (continued)

3/ The collection of certificates of having passed the examination
on safety management, certificate renewal, re-assessment
work of 408 safety management employees and foremen; and

4/ 2,715 employees from 9 job types such as sindering, iron
refinery, steel refinery, steel rolling jobs, etc. joined the training.
The training rate was 99.70%.

Jinxi Special Steel

1/ The training and certificate handling were made in respect
of special facilities. During the year, 12 person-times of
certificates were handled for the overhead travelling crane
workers, 8 person-times of certificates were handled for the
drivers of overhead travelling crane and command cranes; and

2/ Beijing Jin Zi Tian Zheng Model Engineering was invited to
conduct training on high pressure capacitor nil power unit
compensation (£ IH IR ().

B4. LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strictly abided by the requirements of the “Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, “the Employment Contract of
the People’s Republic of China”, which prohibited the recruitment of
minors below 18 years old and forced labour.

B5. SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT

The Group actively strengthened the cooperation with the suppliers
to stabilize the supply and prices of raw materials. It only selected
suppliers which strived for higher and higher quality, respected
environmental protection and with business ethics to be its
cooperation partners. At the same time it also expected its suppliers
to pay attention to the environment and social responsibilities, and it
also took the following measures:

1/ It set up the systems of “Supplier management system”,
“Online invitation of tenders procurement management
methods”, etc. according to the “Law on Invitation of tender”
and the “Regulations of the implementation of the Law on
Invitation of tender” of the state to continue to strengthen the
supplier management and quality monitoring;
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B. SOCIAL (#)

B5. SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT (continued)

2/ It set up electronic files of suppliers, carried out regular
assessment of the supply quantity and quality of the suppliers,
implemented the supplier blacklist system, eliminated and
adjusted suppliers not meeting the requirements, and it also
insisted on strictly prohibiting all bribery and corruption acts,
and abided by ethical practice of companies;

3/ It actively developed and optimised supplier resources. It
cancelled supply via intermediary, the supply companies were
determined according to the tender procedures; and

4/ It set up an online platform to carry out public tender
procurement. It guided procurement on a price-quality
comparison basis by tender, price control, price reduction etc.,
and the public tender rate was over 90%.

B6. PRODUCT LIABILITY

The Group extremely emphasised the quality of its products, all
production companies formulated strict quality inspection systems
to ensure that their products complied with the relevant state
standards. The Group prepared “Quality Handbook” in accordance
with 1ISO9001 quality management system requirements. It is the
framework document for the quality management of the Group.

The Group strengthened the quality monitoring of the production
processes and the strength of random inspection of finished
goods and comprehensively enhanced the quality of products. It
also paid attention to the movement of goods. It learnt about and
mastered the conditions of quality of use by customers, made
continuous improvement, established the goals of client satisfaction
and adaptation to market needs, created brand awareness of the
company and enhanced its market position.
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B. SOCIAL ()
B7. ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group set up an organization and a channel for creating a honest
environment to carry out anti-corruption work, convened meetings
regularly, promoted and provided reporting methods, etc. The
Group also required all subsidiaries to strengthen their internal anti-
corruption and self-discipline education and training continuously.
These included setting up of a report telephone number, electronic
email address, fixed mail box etc for reporting corruption cases;
setting up of special supervisory room, which would make regular
and ad hoc inspection on the carrying out of businesses, prevent
the occurrence of bribery; and the implementation of approval by
different layers of authority to prevent corruption acts during the
course of business.

In 2016, the Group did not have any corruption or bribery case.

B8. INVESTMENT IN THE COMMUNITY
Cultural promotion

The Group set up a subsidiary which is called Beijing Jinxi LongXiang
Culture Development Co. Ltd. (“Longxiang Culture”) to develop
the publishing business and promote culture. In 2016, Longxiang
Culture jointly organized the 2016 First Session of Hebei, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan Youth for Tourism, Literature, Creation
and Design Competition with the provincial tourism development
committee, the provincial cultural bureau, the provincial government
Hong Kong and Macau Affairs Office and other companies and
organizations. Longxiang Culture created an event called “Mengxue
Theme Travel” under the theme of Mengxue using travelling as the
medium. “Mengxue Thirteen Book” that it published was also sold in
other places.

Social charity

Jinxi Limited made donation of RMB 277,000 from its special
difficult, special disease and serious disease foundation, visited
over 400 person-times of its employees. Jinxi Special Steel had 17
person-times of voluntary blood donation, donated RMB 12,000 to
Bo Ai One Day (& —H).
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The Board presents their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability on 3 November 2003 under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 2 March 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company’s principal
activities are investment holding and trading of steel products and
iron ore. The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
sales of iron and steel products, trading of steel products and iron
ore and real estate business.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Approximately 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and
contribution to results are derived from the PRC and mainly from
the production and sales of iron and steel products and real estate
business for the year ended 31 December 2016 and are set out in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and its consolidated balance sheet as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on page 114 to 117.
The balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2016 is set
out in Note 46 to the consolidated the financial statements.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

At a Board meeting held on 31 March 2017, the Board proposed
a final dividend of HK$ 175.9 million (approximately RMB 157.3
million), representing HK$ 0.05 per ordinary share and a special
dividend of HK$ 351.8 million (approximately RMB 314.7 million),
representing HK$ 0.10 per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2016 to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at
the close of business on Monday, 12 June 2017. The final dividend
and special dividend, payable on Tuesday, 27 June 2017 are subject
to approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held on
Wednesday, 31 May 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, an analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and description of possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 8
to 12 and pages 13 to 25 of this annual report respectively. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
can be found in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
In addition, discussions on the Group’s environment, society and
governance, relationship with employees, customers and suppliers
and compliance with laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained on pages 99 to 101 of the
Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@  For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 25 May 2017 to Wednesday, 31 May 2017 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company may be registered, for the purposes of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the forthcoming AGM, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 24 May 2017.

(b)  For determining the entitlement to the final dividend and special
dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 8 June 2017 to Monday, 12 June 2017 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company may be registered, for the purposes of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement for the proposed final dividend
and special dividend. The record date for the proposed final
dividend and special dividend shall be Monday, 12 June 2017.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend and special
dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 7 June 2017.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the consolidated financial results and assets, liabilities

and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, is set out on page 284.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital
during the year are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2016, the Company’s accumulated losses
amounted to RMB 604 million (2015: RMB 812 million) and the
Company did not have distributable reserves. The Company will
utilise the subsidiaries’ retained earnings to set off the Company’s
accumulated losses and distribute the proposed final dividend and
special dividend (subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM).

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s retained earnings amounted to
RMB 5,049 million (2015: RMB 4,340 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
purchases for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan
Mr. Zhu Jun

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao

Mr. Han Li

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ondra Otradovec

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
Mr. Wang Tianyi
Mr. Zhou Guoping
(resigned on 1 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Bing
(appointed on 15 July 2016)

In accordance to the Bye-laws 87 of the Company and the Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, Mr. Shen Xiaoling and Mr. Wong
Man Chung, Francis will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance to the Bye-law 86(2) of the Company, Mr. Wang Bing

being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Directors’ fee specified in each of the existing service contracts
of Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis, and Mr. Wang
Bing is HK$400,000, HK$400,000 and HK$400,000 respectively.
The basis of determining the Directors’ fee was based on the mutual
negotiation between level of the Directors with reference to the
range of prevailing directors’ fee for directors of listed companies
in Hong Kong. Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis,
and Mr. Wang Bing do not have any relationships with any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of
the Company, except Mr. Shen Xiaoling is a minority shareholder
of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 26 to 32 in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Executive Directors have service contracts with the Company
for a fixed term of three years. The Non-executive Director has
service contract with the Company for a fixed term of two years. The
Independent Non-executive Directors have service contracts with
the Company for a fixed term of one year. All the service contracts
with the Executive Directors and the Non-executive Director may be
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Apart from the Director service contracts, Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr.
Zhu Jun, Mr. Shen Xiaoling and Mr. Han Li also have other service
contracts with the Company and its subsidiaries. The emoluments
specified in other service contracts with them are determined by
the remuneration committee of the Company with reference to
their respective qualification and experience, responsibilities to be
undertaken, and the prevailing market level of remuneration of similar
position.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, subject to the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, every Director shall be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses
and liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the execution
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors
of the Group.

BORROWINGS WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Pursuant to the covenant of the 2017 Senior Notes of the Company,
there are specific performance obligations imposed on the
Company’s controlling shareholders which require that each of Mr.
Han Jingyuan and ArcelorMittal should directly or indirectly retain
at least 20% of the total voting power of the voting stock of the
Company. As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding aggregate
principal of the 2017 Senior Notes amounted to nil. 2017 Senior
Notes was fully redeemed on 17 November 2016.
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BORROWINGS WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (continued)

On 25 January 2016, the Company commenced the offer to
repurchase for cash and consent solicitation relating to any and all of

its outstanding 2017 Senior Notes.

The offer expired on 22 February 2016. A principal amount of US$
32,212,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes had been repurchased and
cancelled by the Company. Consents from holders with respect to
principal amount of US$ 68,107,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes had
been obtained. As such, the Company entered into a supplemental
indenture embodying the proposed amendments (“Supplemental
Indenture”) on 24 February 2016 and the Supplemental Indenture

becomes effective on 26 February 2016.

Following the completion of the repurchase, the outstanding
aggregate principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes is US$
79,156,000 and the related specific performance obligations were

removed.

On 15 April 2016, the Company further repurchased a total of
US$ 30,000,000 in principal amount of the 2017 Senior Notes
and delivered for cancellation. The outstanding aggregate principal
amount of the 2017 Senior Notes is further reduced to US$

49,156,000.

On 17 November 2016, the Company redeemed in full an aggregate
principal amount of US$ 49,156,000 of the 2017 Senior Notes (“Early
Redemption”). Upon the completion of the Early Redemption, no

2017 Senior Notes remained outstanding.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interest and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (i) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules and adopted by the Company were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EENSBENERRRE#)

SECURITIES (continued)

Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company: AN BRI AABRERR (D B REzS -
Interests in

underlying Percentage
shares of the
pursuant to Company’s

Interests in Shares share issued share
R ER options capital
Corporate Personal RIBH A E {5AR27  Long/Short
Interest Interest EEBERA ERITRAE position
ARER AR MR MBS /%R
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Note 1)
BHURLE (1) 1,317,502,849 - - 44.94% Long (4F)
- 2,800,000 22,500,000 0.86% Long (4F)
Mr. Zhu Jun
KERE - 2,400,000 7,800,000 0.35% Long (#F)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
BRI - 2,400,000 7,800,000 0.35% Long (#F)
Mr. Zhu Hao
icpired - - 7,800,000 0.27% Long (#F)
Mr. Han Li
BHEE - - 5,400,000 0.18% Long ()
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
Ondra Otradovec L4 - - - - -
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
G - - 6,600,000 0.23% Long ()
Mr. Wang Tianyi
ITREEE - - 2,000,000 0.07% Long ()

Mr. Zhou Guoping (resigned on 1 April 2016)
BT L4 (R FE— NN —HEFHE) - - - - -

Mr. Wang Bing (appointed on 15 July 2016)
FTKEE(R-E—NFLATHAEEE) - - - - -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company:

(continued)

Note:

At 31 December 2016, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owned
63.15% of the issued share capital of Wellbeing Holdings Limited
(“Wellbeing Holdings”) and held 16.09% of the issued share capital
of Wellbeing Holdings on trust for the benefit of certain employees
of the subsidiary of the Company. Wellbeing Holdings beneficially
owned 1,255,849,124 Shares, representing approximately
42.84% of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Han also
beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of Chingford
Holdings Limited (“Chingford Holdings”) which beneficially owned
61,653,725 Shares, representing approximately 2.10% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

At 31 December 2016, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owns
2,800,000 Shares, representing approximately 0.10% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled
Share Option Scheme” below, at 31 December 2016, none
of the Directors, chief executives and their associates of the
Company had any interest and short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares and Senior Notes of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted three share option schemes approved by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 17 May
2006 (“2006 Share Option Scheme”), approved by the Shareholders
at the special general meeting held on 20 December 2010 (“2010
Share Option Scheme”) and approved by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 15 May 2013 (2013 Share Option
Scheme”) respectively (collectively referred to as “Share Option
Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who are regarded as valuable human resources
of the Group or who have contributed to the growth and success
of the Group with their performance and other factors (e.g. their
years of service with the Company and/or work experience and/or
knowledge in the industry etc.) to contribute further to the Company.

The Share Option Schemes do not specify any minimum holding
period and/or performance targets as a condition for the exercise
of an option but subject to the rules of the Share Options Schemes.
The Board is empowered with the authority to determine granting of
an option on a case by case basis taking into account of the relevant
factors as the Board in its sole discretion considers appropriate.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the Share Option
Schemes to each eligible participant within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to Shareholders
approval in a general meeting.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or
by the Board, the Share Option Schemes shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years from their respective dates of adoption.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest of: (a)
the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of
grant.

The consideration payable on acceptance of the options granted to
an grantee under the respective Share Option Schemes is HK$ 1.00.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Schemes upon exercising of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised is 234,670,000 Shares, representing
approximately 8.01% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the 2006 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2006
Share Option Scheme are 290,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 9.91% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2016. Eligible participants of the 2006 Share Option
Scheme includes all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive
and whether independent or not) and any employees (whether full-
time or part-time) of any company in the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest (whether
on an employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid). Details of the share options outstanding
under 2006 Share Option Scheme were as follows:
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TEEEFRBRAS L hBERIE -

EAEEARRRERAS LB BE
EREFRILET  BREFEKEHEK
A E Bt R T AR AR

REEIHEZRE2ENBEE - LT
SERATERSE : (@ BONRE T AT
B2 AT A RERATRA W E - (b) Bt
REERTHHATREZX B EBA
FARERAHATFIHRTE : [ (o) B
RET BHNEE

EEBRESET  BRETAEAD
B IRABZE S (TR A 1.0078 7T «

RITEABE XL ERARITENME H
RITEBRER - RIZERETS - 7
T AT Z B 488073 234,670,000 A -
EARRRAR_-FE-—RFT-_A=1+—H
EEITARAL8.01% °

BIBE_TTNFHERESE - ARF]A
REBRE  UERBE-STFER
REETEIIRX H AP A I AR A M 1T {50 B AT 3%
1THIR% D 42 81 & 290,500,000 JEAZ 15+ 14
RARRRZE—RF+ZA=1+—80H
BEITIRAL9.91% o — T /NFREME
FEIMAEER2HEEREARAEE
E(ERPITESIFERTESNERE
B ) MAEEE K E QRN EE
FAKERRFERAE RN EMEE
WEMES (BRI Bk (THREE
RERASEGHNREEXHEHMAUEERES
XF) o ZETNFHEREREI T HARIT
ER AR IB T -
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR EEENERESSE )
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No.of the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options  duringthe lapsedduring  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  year ended the year ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise hefore the at 31December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2016 2016 2016 2016 the Company
REE
REE  —B-5F R

R ZE-AE T2 ZE-A%
“E-RE tZF  =t-BL tZh
2 -A-R  Zt-AL EEREFE/ =t-8  RBEALF
BT A ATEN  EERET  HH/&HN ATEN  RAHRE
R¥E  ATEHE FE SRATE BRESE NEREZE  BREHE  EREEE  HAESM
HKS HKS
BT BT

RRERE

Mr. Han Jingyuan 20000224 2009/2/24 139 124 2900000 - - 2800000 0.10%
BHALE o

~
T

2019/2/23

201011/26 - 201012/20 300 3.00 6,000,000 (6,000,000) - -
to (Note 1)
S (1)
2016/5/16

Mr. Zhu Jun 2009/2/24 2009/2/24 1.39 1.24 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE o

ey
==t

2019/2/23

Mr. Shen Xieolng 20002124 2009/2/24 139 124 2600000 - - 2600000 0.09%
MEREE o

oy
*

2019/2/23

Mr. Zhu Hao 2009/2/24 2000/2/24 1.39 1.24 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE o

S

2019/2/23
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR EEENERERSE 2
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No. of  the underlying
Closing price No. of granted  cancelled/ options  Shares for
per Share options duringthe lapsed during  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  yearended the year ended t inthe share

o

Exercisable Exercise before the at 31December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 1 January 2016 2016 2016 2016  the Company
REE

REE ZE-7% R
R ZE-RE tZ8 F-RE
ZE-7E tZF  =t-Bt +:H BRERE
25 -A-B  Zt-BL EEREFE/ Zt-8  RBEAAF
BT A ATEN  EERET  H8/%N0 AN REHBE
R¥E  AEHE TEE SRUFE  EREHE MBREHE  BREER  BERESE S48

HKS HKS
B B
Mr. Han Li 20001229 2010/3/29 2.84 277 1,600,000 - - 1600000 0.05%
BNRE o
ES
2019/12/28
Mr. Wong Man 2009/2024  2000/2/24 139 124 2,000,000 - - 2000000 0.07%
Chung, Francis to
EXREE ES
2019/2/23
Employees 2009/2024  2000/2/24 139 124 1,200,000 - - 1200000 0.04%
(8 o
ES
2019/2/23
Employees 20091229 2010/3/29 284 277 115,050,000 - - 115,080,000 392%
[E8 o
ES
2019/12/28
Total
At 136,550,000 - (6000000 130,550,000 4.45%
Note 1: During the year ended 31 December 2016, 6,000,000 options #Hit1: REBE-ZT—R"F+A=+—H
were lapsed. ¢f£ 6 000,000 17 HE AR HEE 25

;g]l_
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the Company can issue
options so that the total number of Shares that may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme are 146,486,250 Shares, representing approximately 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2016.
Eligible participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme includes
all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and whether
independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time or part-
time) of any company in the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an employment
or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid
or unpaid) and any person considered by the Directors to have
contributions to any company in the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds an equity interest. Details of the share
options outstanding under 2010 Share Option Scheme were as
follows:

COMPLAINT

IR EEENBRESTE

BBE-_T—ZTFEREE - ARFA]

BTHERE UEREBE-Z-—ZTFE
RIS TRENFABEBREETE
hTﬁﬁmh@@%ﬁmmwmwk
HX@}{£$ \—é /\¢+_H
z+—ama%”&$m5% —T—=Z
FTHREFINSERZ2EEREARR

ARREE(BERITESIIFITES
MiEwmenBEy)  ASBEMKE AR

SAKREERKERRIFERAERAD
EREENEEES (ERI2BFRE)
(TmEEREARE B HAM M
ERREXHF)IRESFRREAEE T
AKX E ARSI AEEERKERGTRFA
BRAEZNEWERELEBOERA
T ZE-TFHERETE T RITE
HEBREFFT ¢

Closing
price No. of
per Share options
immediately  outstanding
Exercisable Exercise beforethe  at 1 January
Date of grant period price  date of grant 2016
RZB-7E
2 -A-8
R RAH AMTEH
RFR  OARDME kR SRUWE  BREHE
HKS$ HKS$
BT BN
Mr. Han Jingyuan 2011/03/28 011/04/27 3.08 3.8 9,800,000
BHERE fo
Y
2021/03/27
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No. of Approximate
options shareholding
No.of  exercised/ percentage of
options  cancelled/ No.of the underlying
granted lapsed during options  Shares for
during the theyear  outstanding  the options
year ended ended at  inthe share
31 December 31 December 31 December capital of
2016 2016 2016 the Company

REE

ZE-5F

ez =

ZE-RE Zt-BLE RZE-RE

= FER tZh BRERE
=t-At B/ =t-8  RERAR
EEART /%M AMIEH  RAHRE
MEREHE BREZR BREZE  HOREMM
- - 9,800,000 0.33%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DR EEENBRESTE e

No. of Approximate

options shareholding

No.of  exercised/ percentage of

Closing options  cancelled/ No. of the underlying

price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for

per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share

Exercisable Exercise ~ beforethe  at1January 31December 31December 31 December capital of

Date of grant period price  date of grant 2016 2016 2016 2016  the Company
REZ
ZE-5iE
REE =

Z2-XF Zt-ALE RIE-AE
RZB-RE t28 EER T=F  BRERE
b3 -B-A  =t-Bt B/ ZT-B REERLTF
R AAM RGN EERET  HE/XHN ATEN  RAHRE

R¥R  WAEHE 6B SRUWE EREHE MBREHE  EREZE  BEREHE  BYEM
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Mr. Han Jingyuan 201200330 2012/06/30 203 2019800000 - - 9800000 0.33%
ByARE o

ey
==t

20201219

Mr. Zhu Jun 2010/12/24 2010/12/24 3.182 317 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
RERE 0

~
*

202012119

20120330 2012/03/30 203 201 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%

to

E2

202012119

Mr. Shen Xaoing 201012024 2010/12/24 3182 317 2600000 - - 2600000 0.09%
Ry o

oy
==

20201219

2012/03/30  2012/03/30 203 201 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%

to

ES

202012119
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) DREEENBRESTE e

No. of Approximate

options shareholding

No.of  exercised/ percentage of

Closing options  cancelled/ No.of the underlying

price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for

per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options

immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at inthe share

Exercisable Exercise ~ beforethe  at1January 31December 31December 31 December capital of

Date of grant period price  date of grant 2016 2016 2016 2016  the Company
REZ
ZE-5iE
REE =

ZE-5E Zt-BE RZE-AE
RZE-RE +2R EER 1= ERERE
2 -A-B  =t-At BT/ =t-8  RBEALE
RYBAMH AOEN  EERRT  HE/ANH AFER RAWBRE
RFR  OfEHE e SRETE BRESE NEREZE  BREXE  REREEE  HAESM
HKS$ HKS$
BT BT

Mr. Zhu Hao 2010/112/24 2010/12/24 3.182 317 2,600,000 - - 2,600,000 0.09%
FERE o

ES

20201219

20120330 2012/03/30 208 201 2,600,000 -

to

ES

2020112119

2,600,000 0.09%

Mr. HanLi 20101224 2010/12/24 3182 317 1200000 -
Bhik 0

~
T

2020112119

1,200,000 0.04%

201200330 2012/03/30 208 201 2,600,000 -

to

ES

20201219

2,600,000 0.09%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) IR A E B RSS2

No. of Approximate
options shareholding
No.of exercised/ percentage of
Closing options  cancelled/ No. of the underlying
price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for
per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at  inthe share
Exercisable Exercise ~ beforethe  at1January 31December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 2016 2016 2016 2016  the Company
REZ
ZE-5iE
REE =
ZE-AF Zt-BE RSE-AE
RZB-7E t=A EER t2A ERERE
b3 -f-A  =t-At Bfife/ Zt-B RBERLR
RTAAMN AORH  EERRT EE/RNK AMTEH  RAHRE
BFR  UHRHE %E  SRUWE  EREHE WBRERR  BREHE  BREHE  #MEsM
HKS HKS$
ER AR
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis ~ 2010/12/24  2010/12/24 3.182 37 2,300,000 - - 2,300,000 0.08%
BRAE o
S
2020112119
20120330 2012/03/30 2.03 201 2,300,000 - - 2,300,000 0.08%
to
2
2020/12119
Mr. Wang Tianyi 20120330 2012/03/30 2.03 201 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.07%
IxEEE fo
E
2020112119
Employess 20101224 20101224 3.182 347 17,400,000 - - 17,400,000 0.59%
8 fo
S
2020112119
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

COMPLAINT

DR R B IRER &)

No. of Approximate
options shareholding
No.of  exercised/ percentage of
Closing options  cancelled/ No.of the underlying
price No. of granted lapsed during options  Shares for
per Share options during the theyear  outstanding  the options
immediately  outstanding  year ended ended at inthe share
Exercisable Exercise ~ beforethe  at1January 31December 31December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price  date of grant 2016 2016 2016 2016  the Company
REZ
ZE-5iE
REZ =
-3 Zt-BLE ROB-AR
RZB-7 % t=f EER t2A ERERE
b3 -f-A  =t-At Bfife/ Zt-B  RAEARLR
RTAAN RGN EERET  HEH/RHN AMTEH  RAHRE
BFR  UERHE R SRUWE  EREHE WBERERR  BREZE  RREEE  #SHEM
HKS HKS$
BR Bn
Employess 2012/03/30  2012/03/30 203 201 41,120,000 - - 41,120,000 1.40%
E8 to
E
2020112119
Other Participants 2012/03/30  2012/03/30 203 201 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - -
At pEE o (Note 2
3 (fi2)
2020112119
Total
ait 106,120,000 - (2,000,000 104,120,000 355%
Note 2: 2,000,000 options were lapsed during the year ended 31 Hit2: REBZE-_ZT—XR"F+-A=+—H

December 2016. IEFEA 2,000,000 7 ERED %k

B o

90 China Oriental Group Company Limited B #y 4 Bl % B A FR A 7]



The Dumping and Subsidizing of
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Public Attachment 11

Directors’ Report EE/#H %%

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme are 146,571,250 Shares, representing 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2016. Eligible participants of the 2013 Share Option Scheme
includes all Directors (whether Executive or Non-executive and
whether independent or not) and any employees (whether full-time
or parttime) of any company in the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds an equity interest (whether on an
employment or contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and
whether paid or unpaid) and any person considered by the Directors
to have contributions to any company in the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds an equity interest. As at 31
December 2016, no options were granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme.

The accounting policy for equity-settled share option is stated in the
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or were the Company or any of
its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Company’s Directors, their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and the transactions as disclosed in
Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries have any contract of
significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

LRGSR BRER &)

BIBE-_T—=FBREE - ARF]A]
BITHRE  UWERBE_Z—=FEK
R EIG TR OB BRERITER
Al T EITHAR (D B85 146,571,250 %
B HERARGTRZE—ARF+=
A=1+—HBE#ETRANE% - —FT—=
FTHEREFINGERZ2EEREARR
ARREE(ERIITIIENITRERE
BEN)  AEBEEAKE QAR SAEE
EAKEARHEERAN R ELR
WEfE S (Em2 R (TRikiE
A A R EERUNEM A A RRRR
FINREERAHAEEERKE QT
SARKBEEMKERRIFEREAERZH
FREBELEMOERNAL - RZF
—RNF+ZA=+—8 BERE_F
—=F R ERT B L IR -

AR 4 H VBB A WY 2 AT BRI & B
TSR 2 251 ©

ESRBRODESFHNER

Bk L XS - RF REMERE - 5%
BEEAESFARFSEENERBIRD
TABENFREREBBEARRFR
EEMEABE R REFMERE
A - RITEEARFERN  MARFK
HAEER AR - B RHB AR MM B
REERT L ER T BEAREE
= FESENRBIARHTN\ERNTF
ZA] R EMEABEBEAZSER -

EXEH
B £ SCPR I ER S Ko & OF B 755 ¥R R Bl 7E 44
PR BRI S5 45 B B SR S EL X AAT Y

BARNREALERRRASENBER
BRI MAHAIEAREA ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

At 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of every R-ZE—RNE+-_A=1+—80" #EBERX
person, other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, NEIERBHE AN EIEIEDE 336 (R E
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register MR ZMArts: - BB/ AT (RATE
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO BT EBTHRABBRINRAR RN K&

are as follows: RO EENERIOAR T ¢
Percentage
of the Company’s
Number of issued share Long/Short
Name shares held capital Position
EARAFE
£ RGO &R BITREEDLE 9
ArcelorMittal Holdings AG 1,377,491,891 46.99% Long (%)
(“AM Holdings AG”) (Note 1)
(TAM Holdings AG J) (f&3£ 1)
Wellbeing Holdings 1,255,849,124 42.84% Long (#f)
Note: T

(1) At 31 December 2016, Mr. Lakshmi Niwas Mittal and Mrs. Usha (1) RZZE—ARFE+=A=+—8 Lakshmi

Mittal beneficially own 37.38% of the issued share capital of Niwas Mittal £ 4 F Usha Mittal A X & 7
ArcelorMittal which indirectly holds the entire equity interest in ¥ ArcelorMittal B 24T A< 37.38% -
AM Holdings AG, which beneficially owns 1,377,491,891 Shares, i ArcelorMittal E## A AM Holdings
representing approximately 46.99% of the issued share capital of AG & EBRE A #EZ + AM Holdings AGE
the Company. @5 1,377,491,891 AR - 49(h A

NREEITIARL) 46.99% HE2 ©

Saved as disclosed above and in Directors’ Interests and Short B ENREERESFNERNARE —&

Positions in Securities sections, at 31 December 2016, no person, Frigs@os M- E—XRFE+_A=+—
other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, had B REAQANIZRBRESRBEKRGE

interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of 336 RFTTFE R ZM - BEEAL(R
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the REEBXNEBITHABRINNART)
Company under Section 336 of the SFO. & MBI E R SRR ©
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had conducted a review of the related
party transactions of the Group and is satisfied that all connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions have been
properly reported and complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following
transactions between certain connected parties (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into and/or
are ongoing for which relevant announcements and independent
shareholders’ approval, if necessary, had been made and obtained
by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and disclosed in the Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Company where applicable.

Connected transactions

On 1 April 2016, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Group Special Steel
Company Limited (“Jinxi Special Steel”) entered into the Share
Transfer Agreement with Qianxi Xin Ding Da Trading Company
Limited (“Xin Ding Da”) relating to an acquisition pursuant to which
Jinxi Special Steel has agreed to acquire from Xin Ding Da and Xin
Ding Da has agreed to sell to Jinxi Special Steel the entire equity
interest in Qianxi County Jinxi Wantong Ductile Iron Pipe Limited
(“dinxi Wantong”) for the Consideration of approximately RMB
262,843,700 in accordance with the terms therein contained. Jinxi
Wantong was a wholly owned subsidiary of Xin Ding Da which
is wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Xin. Mr. Zhang Xin is a deemed
connected person of the Company as he is the nephew of Mr.
Zhang Yuhai who is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of being a director of Tianjin Juli Trade Company Limited (“Juli
Trade”), Jinxi Special Steel and Qianxi Xinhaiyuan Trade Company
Limited (“Xinhaiyuan”). Therefore, Mr. Zhang Xin and Xin Ding Da are
connected persons of the Company.

Continuing connected transactions

On 27 December 2012, Hebei Iron and Steel Group Company
Limited (“Jinxi Limited”) entered into a framework agreement
with Qianxi County Longba Charging Company Limited (“Longba
Charging”), an associate of a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company, for the purchase of lime products and related
products from Longba Charging by Jinxi Limited and/or its
subsidiaries for the three years ending 31 December 2015.

REXZRGEBERS

RER > KRR BEITRTAE®EZHE
MAERXS BEMMBERERZREFE
BERSGHBEEZAE2HRKLET ETHRE
FUABZHEERTE - IR EMHRBIE 14A
EMEE BETHEERZRLETRAE
EVAREEETHN TR ZEER]L
R/ SKIGEHET > MARRCIELHEE
NERESEIIREAE(NTE) KRR
RNARE I SHREM T 44 R EHFE (40
) °

RZE—RFNA—H - A2 raiE
EESMARAR(EERH ) HEEE
ZESEREERAR(ERENEH
—IBINEEET RO EERZ - Bt
EERHCRENBRENRE  UES
RERERIBZE P S IGER RS
i DA X (B 49 A R ¥ 262,843,700 7T 1 &
BREGEABRRBEEERAA(#
mEdE])2RE - EASREF AR
MrE2ERBENEREZZEBHEARN
Barlc ARFAERRESLE(HAE
REBFEZERARIEFNES])
RSN EASEE S REEER AR
(IB8RDMNESEAMBR AR AN
EALD)WEZMERBARRRIMEZEA
T Al RIAERSREHAED
BIMEREAL -

FERERS

RIZB——F+-A-++H mdR
PR AR AR A RI(DRFEME])
HEMEESENBREET AR ES
EE - ARBIMBAR EERRNHE
A) - sUERFEE R KEME AR ERE
BEMNBEOREMMEEEM N —
NERBEE-_T—RAF+-_A=+—
HiE=% -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 29 January 2016, Jinxi Limited entered into a renewal framework
agreement with Longba Charging for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and expiring on 31 December
2018. The annual cap for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the renewal framework agreement for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 will not
exceed RMB 130 million, RMB 130 million and RMB 130 million
respectively. The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended
31 December 2016 was RMB 130 million. The total amount of the
aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB 27.8 million (excluding VAT).

On 27 December 2012, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Pingquan County Jinyin Charging Company Limited
(“Pingquan County Jinyin”), a company established in the PRC
and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
an associate of a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the
Company, for the purchase of lime products and related products
from Pingguan County Jinyin by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries
for the three years ending 31 December 2015.

On 29 January 2016, Jinxi Limited entered into a renewal framework
agreement with Pingquan County Jinyin for a further term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2016 and expiring on 31
December 2018. The annual cap for the continuing connected
transactions contemplated under the renewal framework agreement
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 will not exceed RMB 7.5 million, RMB 7.5 million and RMB 7.5
million respectively. The annual cap for this transaction for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was RMB 7.5 million. The total amount of
the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
nil.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 2 January 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Tangshan Jinxin Enterprise Group Limited (formerly
known as Qianxi County Jinxin Mining Company Limited) (“Jinxin
Mining”), a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company,
for the purchase of iron powder and related products from Jinxin
Mining and/or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries
for the three years ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for
this transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB
140 million. The total amount of the aforesaid transaction incurred
by Jinxi Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2016 was nil. Following the expiry of the framework agreement
on 31 December 2016, Jinxi Limited did not renew the framework
agreeement with Jinxin Mining.

On 4 June 2014, the Company entered into the iron and steel
framework agreement with Oriental Sheet Piling Sdn. Bhd. (“Oriental
Sheet Piling”), a subsidiary of ArcelorMittal, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, in which the Company and/or its subsidiaries would
sell steel products to Oriental Sheet Piling and/or its subsidiaries at
prevailing market prices for the three years ending 31 December
2016. The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB 139 miillion. The total amount of the
aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB 72.4 million (excluding VAT) (Note 44(b)).

On 6 January 2017, the Company entered into a renewal framework
agreement with Oriental Sheet Piling for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December
2019. The annual cap for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the renewal framework agreement for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 will not
exceed RMB 150 million, RMB 150 million and RMB 150 million
respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 31 October 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi Dong Fang Shen Huo Environmental
Protection Technology Product Company Limited (“Dong Fang Shen
Huo”), a company established in the PRC and currently owned as
to 81% by Mr. Wang Qinghong who is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Yu Lifeng, the general manager and director of Jinxi Limited, and
is a deemed connected person of the Company, for the purchase
of energy-saving products from Dong Fang Shen Huo and/or its
subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries for the three years
ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for this transaction for
the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB 100 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December
2016 was RMB 7.7 million (excluding VAT). Following the expiry of
the framework agreement on 31 December 2016, Jinxi Limited did
not renew the framework agreement with Dong Fang Shen Huo.

On 2 December 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Xin Ding Da, a company established in the PRC and
wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Xin who is the nephew of Mr. Zhang
Yuhai, a director of Juli Trade, Jinxi Special Steel and Xinhaiyuan, and
is a deemed connected person of the Company, for the purchase of
iron powder and coke and related products from Xin Ding Da and/
or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries for the three
years ending 31 December 2016. The annual cap for this transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB 70 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December
2016 was RMB 16.0 million (excluding VAT). Following the expiry of
the framework agreement on 31 December 2016, Jinxi Limited did
not renew the framework agreement with Xin Ding Da.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 2 December 2014, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi Jin Zhao Lai Iron Ore Mine (“Jin Zhao Lai”),
a company established in the PRC and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang
Yugui who is the brother of Mr. Zhang Yuhai, a director of Juli Trade,
Jinxi Special Steel and Xinhaiyuan, and is a deemed connected
person of the Company, for the purchase of iron powder and related
products from Jin Zhao Lai and/or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited
and/or its subsidiaries for the three years ending 31 December 2016.
The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31 December
2016 was RMB 60 million. The total amount of the aforesaid
transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was nil (excluding
VAT).

On 6 January 2017, Jinxi Limited entered into a renewal framework
agreement with Jin Zhao Lai for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December
2019. The annual cap for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the renewal framework agreement for each
of the three years ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 will
not exceed RMB 30 million, RMB 30 million and RMB 30 million
respectively. Jin Zhao Lai is currently wholly owned by Ms. Liu
Cuihong. Ms. Liu Cuihong is the wife of Mr. Zhang Yugui and Mr.
Zhang Yugui is a deemed connected person of the Company as
he is the brother of Mr. Zhang Yuhai who is connected person of
the Company by virtue of being a director of Jinxi Special Steel,
Juli Trade and Xinhaiyuan, all being indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 5 January 2015, Jinxi Special Steel entered into a tenancy
agreement with Jinxi Wantong, a company established in the PRC
and wholly owned by Xin Ding Da which is wholly owned by Mr.
Zhang Xin, who is the nephew of Mr. Zhang Yuhai, a director of
Juli Trade, Jinxi Special Steel and Xinhaiyuan, and is a deemed
connected person of the Company, for leasing of the production
facilities of Jinxi Wantong for the three years commencing on 26
November 2014 and expiring on 25 November 2017 by Jinxi Special
Steel. The annual cap for this transaction for the year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB 204 million. The total amount of the
aforesaid transaction for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB 44.5 million (excluding VAT). Following the acquisition of Jinxi
Wantong on 1 April 2016, Jinxi Wantong becomes an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and ceased to be a
connected person of the Company.

On 30 Spetember 2016, Jinxi Limited entered into a framework
agreement with Qianxi County Xinxuan Coal Company Limited
(““Xinxuan Coal”), a company established in PRC with limited liability
and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Xin who is the nephew of Mr. Zhang
Yuhai who is a connected person of the Company by virtue of being
a director of Juli Trade, Jinxi Special Steel and Xinhaiyuan, for the
purchase of iron powder and related products from Xinxuan Coal
and/or its subsidiaries by Jinxi Limited and/or its subsidiaries for
the three years commencing on 30 September 2016 and expiring
on 31 December 2018. The annual cap for this transaction for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB 54 million. The total
amount of the aforesaid transaction incurred by Jinxi Limited and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB 19.1
million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.
The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered into (a) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (c) according to the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its letter confirming nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages
93 to 99 of this annual report were not in compliance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIETY AND GOVERNANCE

The Group has committed to perform its corporate responsibility
for environmental protection and strictly comply with the national
regulations by continue investment in its production facilities
to reduce emissions and energy consumption during the steel
production process so as to minimise the impact of the production
process on the environment. The Group has also recognised the
local laws and regulations which are applicable to the Group’s
business to ensure the operation of the Group complies with all the
relevant local laws, regulations and standards.

REXZRGEBERS #)

BHEBER S ®)

i FERERHERAR BB IEH
TESEMN - BIUFATESHER LA
FEMERZZ (EASENEEERK
FRETAL : (o) IR HR — AR A TS IR R S B A A6AK
T ROREBEBERZONMEET 1K
RRFRE  YENEARARENE

BEEBSTMASBMHMNBBIZE?
T 4RI 25 3000 5% [ fFE £ BA 75 B KRR 3K
FR LN EIL TE] R EE I
F 7405 [ BB ETARARERFERZE
RSWZEEM R - RAFZEBAE X
EHAEEFERERHIELRE - &%
HEERAFRFE IR EI BFTEAEE
FENFEBERS B R #R
HI T B EMEE - AEmfRA
EHRBEREISTTIFAE EMRAIE
14A.56 1§ 2 3 7E ° ANA R E #Z% S8M K
B AR REE A AR

RIR - HEBRER

AEBBRNBEHRBRENDEEE
REFEZER  —HBEBFERAE
RN E A EREBIAR D #E £E BT
HIPER M BETROBRE - WM BN EALE
BEMRENTE -  ARBTEHTEE
FATA 7R 52 B S 75 60 & 3R 12 KUK AR DATE
REBEBNEFENTAMABRNE A
B IR NITE -

Annual Report 2016 —F—NE4EHR

COMPLAINT

99



The Dumping and Subsidizing of

Public Attachment 11

Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

100

Directors’ Report EE£ 54

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIETY AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Except for the installation of electrostatic precipitators and bag
precipitators at the production facilities, all the operating production
facilities are equipped with environmental control facilities in
order to reduce exhaust emission and meet the relevant national
standard. Production and domestic wastewater of the Company
will be recycled and subsequently used in the closed water loop. In
addition, measures for filtration and reuse are adopted to reduce
the production of waste mineral oil. For the waste mineral oil which
cannot be reused, we engage the experts with relevant qualification
and processing capacity to carry out the harmless treatment of
waste mineral oil for us as required by the state environmental
regulations. Smelting slag and solid waste produced during other
smelting process of iron making will be sold to other cement factories
or used as raw material in other production process. After the above
comprehensive treatment measures, the impact on the environment
shall be reduced.

The Environmental, Social and Governance report are set out on
pages 57 to 71 in this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the employees of the Group are valuable
assets. The Group offered competitive remuneration to attract and
retain the talented employees. Regular review on remuneration of
employees is made in order to retain outstanding employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Our relationships with major customers are contract-based. The
Group cherished the mutually beneficial relationships with our
customers. We will provide the best value to our clients to establish
and consolidate the Group’s reputation in the industry. Also, we
believe that maintaining long term relationship with the suppliers is
essential to the Group’s success. The Group will keep strengthening
the partnership with clients and suppliers, aiming to realise a triple-
win result.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has implemented policies
and procedures which related to our industry designed to ensure
compliance with the most relevant laws and regulations, but there
can be no assurance that the Group’s employees or agents will
not violate such laws and regulations or the Group’s policies and
procedures.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Trading in the shares of the Company had been suspended from
29 April 2014 when the public float of the Company fell below 25%.
The Stock Exchange indicated that the Company is required to
suspend trading in the shares of the Company until the minimum
public float is restored. Public float of the Company was restored on
27 January 2017 and trading in the shares of the Company had been
resumed on 1 February 2017. Details of public float status of the
Company have been disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 30 December 2013, 11 April 2014, 5 May 2014, 30 May
2014, 6 July 2014, 20 August 2014, 26 August 2014, 5 September
2014, 16 October 2014, 21 November 2014, 16 December 2014,
13 February 2015, 18 March 2015, 16 April 2015, 15 May 2015,
29 May 2015, 15 June 2015, 17 July 2015, 14 August 2015, 14
September 2015, 6 October 2015, 6 November 2015, 7 December
2015, 7 January 2016, 5 February 2016, 4 March 2016, 7 April 2016,
9 May 2016, 10 May 2016, 10 June 2016, 8 July 2016, 10 August
2016, 12 September 2016, 12 October 2016, 15 November 2016,
15 December 2016, 16 January 2017, 22 January 2017, 27 January
2017 and the announcement of the Stock Exchange dated 27 July
2016.
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PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Apart from the repurchase and early redemption of a total of principal
amount of US$ 62,212,000 and US$ 49,156,000 respectively of the
2017 Senior Notes, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities for the year ended 31 December 2016.

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers retired and a resolution for their

reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

HAN Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017

* For identification purposes only
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_
pwc B RE

To the shareholders of China Oriental Group Company Limited HPERAFEEEREREATKRE

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (RERZFMA A ERAF])
OPINION =R
What we have audited BHMEEAHAR

The consolidated financial statements of China Oriental Group HEEFEEEKRBRE AR TEETE

Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) [ERA ) RENBARIATSGRE &5
set out on pages 114 to 283, which comprise: B )7SNE 114 = 283 B A S 5HR
=~ B
e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016; o RN-T—XNRE+-_B=1+—HWHE
HEEBESE

e  the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then o HEZHIEFEMAMEZREK
ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the o HEZBIEFENESHEaEmER
year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year o HEZBHIFFENS R
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ° HEZBIFEERNASMHESRER
ended; and N

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which . S HRERNE  BfEErEes
include a summary of significant accounting policies. BURBLE o

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

FRLT R A Bt T o » R BOK K
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Hat# : +852 2289 8888 ¢ K : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment of property, plant and equipment

o Recoverability of loans and other receivables
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
BREETTEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(“PP&E”)

WE -~ BB RE G REE

Refer to Note 2.10 “Accounting policy — Impairment of
non-financial assets”, Note 4 (a) “Critical accounting
estimates and judgements — Impairment of PP&E” and
Note 7 “PP&E” to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2016, certain PP&E of the Group had
impairment indicators, either because certain production
lines of the Group were shut down during the year, or
the Group has plans to shut down other production lines
in the coming year in response to regulations issued by
local governments to reduce excessive steel production
capacity. In addition, the economic performance of a
subsidiary engaging in the manufacturing of certain steel
products had been continuously below expectation. As a
result, the Group set aside a total impairment provision of
RMB 1,573 million against these PP&E at 31 December
2016, and recorded a corresponding charge of RMB 810
million to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year then ended.

BREE IR EN T 210 @5 HKFE -2 HE
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
KN ETTNAEERRENEE

Our audit procedures on the PP&E impairment included:

We examined local government’s documents
and performed search on internet to corroborate
management’s assessment of the impact of local
government’s policies on the Group’s PP&E, together
with the appropriateness of management’s grouping of
these PP&E with the relevant CGUs.

With regard to the PP&E where the recoverable amount
was determined using FVLCOD, we checked, on a
sample basis, the estimated disposal considerations of
the PP&E by comparing the estimations with currently
available market price quotations or recent similar
transactions.

BEYE - BERRENEZZF B
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Key Audit Matter
BRESE

In assessing the recoverability of the PP&E that had
impairment indicators, management identified the
relevant cash generating units (“CGUSs”) to which these
PP&E belong, and estimated the recoverable amounts of
these CGUs based on the higher of their fair value less
costs of disposal (“FVLCOD”) and value in use (“VIU”)
calculation. Management applied significant judgements
in determining the FVLCOD and VIU. The key assumption
adopted in the calculations of FVLCOD was the estimated
disposal considerations. The key judgements adopted in
the VIU calculation included:

e growth rates to extrapolate revenue and cash flows
within and beyond the budget period;

e gross margin; and
e discount rate.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
impairment provision and the significance of management
judgements adopted in assessing the recoverable
amount.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

B ET R E AR ETER

With regard to the PP&E where the recoverable amounts
were determined based on VIU calculations:

e We assessed the discounted cash flow method used
by management to determine the VIU by reference
to industry practices, and tested the mathematical
accuracy of the VIU calculations.

e We compared the input data used in the cash
flow forecasts against the historical figures and the
Group’s approved budget and its business plans.

e We challenged management’s key assumptions by:

e Comparing the revenue growth rates within the
budget period with the relevant CGU’s historical
growth rates and industry historical data; and
those beyond the budget period with our
independent expectation based on economic
data;
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter Key Audit Matter
BRETEE RPN ETT AR EERETSE

e Comparing the gross margin with the
relevant CGU’s past performance, taking into
consideration of market trends; and

e Assessing the discount rate by considering and
recalculating the weighted average cost of capital
for the individual CGU and comparable companies
in the steel industry, as well as considering territory
specific factors, such as risk free interest rate and
debt ratio prevailing in China market as at base
date.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
management’s key judgements applied in the impairment
assessment of PP&E were supportable by the evidence
we gathered.
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Key Audit Matter
BRESE

Recoverability of loans and other receivables

B R E A W SR 89 A B 1

Refer to Note 2.12 “Accounting policy — Impairment
of financial assets carried at amortised cost”, Note 4
(c) “Critical accounting estimates and judgements —
Impairment of loans and other receivables”, Note 18
“Prepayments, deposits and other receivables” and Note
19 “Loans receivables” to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had loans and other
receivables of RMB 448 million and RMB 563 million,
respectively. The borrowers or debtors of certain loans
and other receivables were in financial difficulties or have
commenced bankruptcy proceedings. A provision of
RMB 47 milion and RMB 316 million was set aside by
management against these loans and other receivables,
respectively.

BRSO BIREN F2.12] B5HBE — 1285,
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
BN ETT AR ERERETEE

Our audit procedures on the recoverability of loan and
other receivables included:

e We assessed, on a sample basis, significant loans
and other receivables for indicators of impairment,
including reading the relevant contracts and
checking against the contractual repayment terms,
to independently identify loans and other receivables
which had objective evidence of impairment,
and compared such with management’s own
assessment.

e For significant loans and other receivables with
objective evidence of impairment:

e checked settlements of these receivables after the
reporting date;

e conducted background search to evaluate the
financial position of the borrowers or debtors;
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Key Audit Matter
BEETTEE

Impairments are recognised whenever there is objective
evidence that the present value of estimated future
cash flows measurable decreases and is lower than
the carrying amount of the loans and other receivables.
The recoverability of individually significant loans and
other receivables were assessed on an individual basis
based on management’s estimates of discounted
future cash flows. Loans and other receivable balances
without objective evidence of impairment were grouped
based on their credit risk characteristics for evaluation.
The collective impairment provision was determined by
management based on historical loss experience and
aging analysis, taking into considerations of industry and
other circumstances.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
loans and other receivables and the significance of
management’s judgements applied in assessing the
recoverability of such balances.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
RPN ETT AR EERETSE

e gathered information on collaterals, if any, and
assessed their values by comparing with the
available evidences, including valuation reports;
and

e discussed with external legal counsels and
obtained legal letters to understand and evaluate
the impact of the outstanding legal proceedings
with the borrowers or debtors on recoverability of
the balances.

e We assessed the appropriateness of management’s
grouping of balances based on risk characteristics,
and tested the collective provision estimation by
considering the historical bad debts amounts and
pattern, taking into consideration of factors such as
borrowers or debtors’ credit and market conditions.

Based on the procedures performed, we found
management’s assessment and judgments of the
recoverability of loans and other receivables to be
supported by the evidence we gathered.

o EEEHRER(INE)KEBLRAIFEME
E(BEFGEHRE)FEEER &

o BRSMNEERREAMMETTI R REGERME U T
RN FHEBRAREE A 2 M RBEEERF
RN AR 2 8 -

s RAENARFEFEEEENEHRES ZEE
1 WEBERBEREBRARN  KEBEE
SEBEANEERTSIRFEE - AEl AR
BiBlhET -

RIBFTETZEF - HAIEREREHER L EMAE

YRR R AT B 2 B e 41 mT 5 B PR ER B R 4
FITSCH o

Annual Report 2016 —F—NE4EHR

COMPLAINT

109



The Dumping and Subsidizing of

Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

110

Public Attachment 11

Independent Auditor’s Report &3 & B Ef ik &

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mang Kwong Fung, Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 201
(BRREEAMN  FESEANARE (AR ) FrhiEl) RZZ-—R"FTA=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Leasehold land and land use rights
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Investment in associates
Available-for-sale financial assets
LLoan receivables
Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets
Properties under development
and held for sale
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Amounts due from related parties
Prepaid current income tax
Loan receivables
Notes receivable —
bank acceptance notes
Derivative financial instruments
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Note
MI5E
BE
ERBEE
FAE 13 % + 3 FR A 6
Y - R MR 7
WA 8
| EE 9
REEE RN R 2 IE 11
AfHESREE 15
U EFK 19
TERFOE « e K HM
JEUTAR X 18
REFSTHEE 29
REBEE
BRP RFENEE
14
FE 16
FEINE 5 8RR 17
TENFIE - e REAM
FEUTAR X 18
JrE Uk RS 75 SR IE 44(c)
TE{ & HFTS
FEWE K 19
FEURE I — SRITAH
fER 17
PTESBMTA
EAREE= 8 EEE)
FFABERZE/mEE 20
IR HIERTT AR 21
ReERREEEY 21
wmEE
e
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&N 22
&= (E 22
H A 23
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As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—AF
193,123 140,422
8,038,406 8,260,356
6,549 6,990
94,370 79,464
55,632 8,836
489,555 109,605
= 400,000
13,000 23,000
155,880 377,949
9,046,515 9,406,622
1,419,113 1,313,712
3,334,350 2,494,024
482,813 1,004,526
1,405,123 1,395,156
16,671 5,828
28,814 38,128
401,000 =
2,339,669 2,452,299
6,220 10,233
387,458 131,951
890,617 1,773,697
1,290,199 2,337,547
12,002,047 12,957,101
21,048,562 22,363,723
311,853 311,853
2,192,131 2,192,131
1,703,308 1,670,302
5,048,806 4,340,142
9,256,098 8,514,428
108,443 397,734
9,364,541 8,912,162
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(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2016
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As at 31 December

n+=ZHA=+—H
Note 2016 2015
Mk —E-RNE —E—HHF
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Borrowings (= 26 246,500 743,891
Other long-term payables H b= BAFE T BRFX 27 615,194 1,181,343
Deferred revenue FIEUA 28 78,107 86,317
Amounts due to related parties FE{ST AR 5 ZAE 44(c) 51,859 51,859
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTSTHAE 29 42,204 -
1,033,864 2,063,410
Current liabilities i p=Ki
Trade payables JESHE ZERFK 24 5,425,323 5,641,030
Accruals, advances and JEIRE A « FEWGKIE
other current liabilities FEMREEE 25 3,368,510 2,846,169
Amounts due to related parties FE S B8 ESE 5 I8 44(c) 27,266 83,044
Current income tax liabilities SHIRREHAaE 122,918 102,795
Derivative financial instruments TSR TE 15,669 3,616
Other long-term payables — E bR B FE{STER SR
current portion — RENENMD 27 551,392 48,441
Borrowings &k 26 1,134,507 2,658,484
Dividends payable FERTAR B 4,572 4,672
10,650,157 11,388,151
Total liabilities BmEE 11,684,021 13,451,561
Total equity and liabilities EzREES 21,048,562 22,363,723

The notes on pages 121 to 283 are an integral part of these financial el
statements. BB o

The financial statements on pages 114 to 283 were approved by the F114E283EMAEHMBERERENR -

Board of Directors on 31 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf. —tF=A=T—HEKEZRHAELHMN
TEERAEEE -
Han Jingyuan Han Li
BRE Bh
Chairman Director
£ EE
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss & #4fig#*&

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

Note 2016 2015
3 —B-XEF —T-TF
Revenue WA 5 26,427,443 21,071,538
Cost of sales SHE AN 32 (23,753,492) (20,714,679)
Gross profit EF 2,673,951 356,859
Other income HAb g A 31 6,129 22,555
Distribution costs DR 32 (118,571) (100,767)
Administrative expenses 1T ER 32 (782,289) (421,648)
Other expenses HEmE A 32 (29,854) (20,000)
Gains/(Losses) from derivative PTESRMT Az
financial instruments (E8) 37 35,832 (5,040)
Other losses — net HAbEsie —F8 30 (656,959) (299,046)
Operating profit/(loss) mERR S (BR) 1,128,239 (467,087)
Finance income EuE AN 34 109,893 122,129
Finance costs BE TSR AR 34 (182,162) (543,965)
Finance costs — net BRSNS — 558 (72,269) (421,836)
Share of results of associates NG (1,022) (749)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax METEBIANER (EE) 1,054,948 (889,668)
Income tax expense FriSti &R 35 (523,936) (46,349)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERF(BR) 531,012 (936,017)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: AL () BB -
Owners of the Company RANRESEEE 722,127 (766,503)
Non-controlling interests FEPE A A (191,115) (169,514)

531,012 (936,017

Earnings/(Losses) per share for profit/ FRAATERZFEE
(loss) attributable to owners of the FEAEER, (B518) NER

Company during the year Wz (E58)

(expressed in RMB per share) (BRARYT)

— Basic earnings/(losses) per share —gRERKE (EE) 38 RMB 0.25 RMB (0.26)
— Diluted earnings/(losses) per share —gRmEkE (B1E) 38 RMB 0.25 RMB (0.26)

The notes on pages 121 to 283 are an integral part of these financial #5121 2283 BRI AZEMIERERANE
statements. B S5 o
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income & #t4r & W= &

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BAEEAN MESBEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HILEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

Note 2016 2015
FisE —EBE-XFE —T—AHEF
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEBRAN,(HE) 531,012 (936,017)
Other comprehensive income: HitiRE W ¢
Item that may be reclassified R E SR Rk
subsequently to profit or loss mIE g
Fair value gains on available-for-sale At ESREE
financial assets MR R EERE 15 1,521 3,979
Transfer of fair value losses previously NEEHEESH
credited to reserve to statement B ERELATETA
of profit or loss upon disposal of RENALBEEE
available-for-sale financial assets EEERE 15 = (8,754)
1,521 4,775)
Total comprehensive income for FEHFEWEEE
the year 532,533 (940,792)
Attributable to: EER
Owners of the Company KAREREEE 723,648 (771,278)
Non-controlling interests FEFR IR (191,115) (169,514)

532,533 (940,792)

The notes on pages 121 to 283 are an integral part of these financial %121 2283 BN Az E W SRR AE
statements. BB/ o
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT

Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &6tz 2 8%

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BRBEAN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRFERIRERS

118

Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controling Total
Note capital  premium  reserves  eamings Total  interests equity
S
itz Bx RbEE AtEE 2Rk @ Ba  EaAi
Balance at 1 January 2015 R-E-RE-R-BHER 311,803 2,192,131 1,630,006 5123067 9,267,067 514,789 9,771,846
Comprehensive income GelE
Proft orloss for the year EEaTIEE - - - (766503) (766503 (169514  (936,017)
Other comprehensive income Ahza s
Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale A HELREAE
financial assets HALEREkE 15 - - 3979 - 3979 - 3979
Transfer of fair value losses previously WA HESRBE L ER
credited to reserve 1o statement BAR ARRBRAL
of profit or loss upon disposal of BEFEEZERR
avallable-for-sale financial assets - - (8,754) - (8,754) - (8,754)
Total comprehensiveincome ~ SAUEA : - W) (6509 [T (169514 (040799)
Transactions with owners RERHEEENRS
Profit appropriation to WiEE (e
statutory reserves rpa 2 - - 1642 (1642 - - -
Establishment of a subsidlary K- RHBAT - - - - - 500 500
Changes in ownership nterests EARERTIROERT
in a subsidiary without change SENHBATA
of control FEERR - - 28,649 - 28,649 51,959 80,608
Total transactions with owners ~ BBGHAENRAET - - 507 (16422 28649 52450 81,108
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=B-TE+-A=t-R
fite 311,803 2,192,131 1,670,802 4,340,142 8514428 397,734 8,912,162
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT

Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) & R # 8 & @)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—AFt-A=T—BLLFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BAEEPN - MESBEIRARBTTREN)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRRERAEE
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
sl
bt ke RHEE EtRk EFiE @t B8 EgAi
Balance at 1 January 2016 R=B-~E-A-AfLsH 311,853 2192131 1670302 4,340,142 8514428 397,734 8912162
Comprehensive income GElE
Profit or loss for the year EEETInER - - - T2R121 122121 (191,115) 531,012
Other comprehensive income sk
Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale ~ WHEESRERN AL
financial assets BEkE 15 - - 1,521 - 1,521 = 1,521
Total comprehensive income GalEas - - 150 TA! 123648 (191,115 532533
Transactions with owners RERREENRS
Proft appropriation to AT R (ELA
statutory reserves arlak 23 - - 13463 (13,463) - - -
Capltal reduction of a subsidlary RO —RMBARER - - - - - (200000 (20,000
Disposal of subsidiaries with HEMBARERE
loss of conrol 1Bl = - - - - 4111 4111
Changes in ownership interests ERUEEIRNEA T
in a subsidlary without chenge EERHBAAMN
of control FaERER 10l - - 18,022 - 18022  (82,287)  (64,265)
Total transactions with owners ~ EERBEENRAAM - - 31485 (13463 18022  (08,176)  (80,154)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R=Z-AE+=A=1-H
e 311,853 2,192,131 1,703,308 5048806 9,256,098 108443 9,364,541

The notes on pages 121 to 283 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Annual Report 2016 —F—NE4EHR

119



The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow §#R&RER

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BABEAN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

Note 2016 2015
izt —E-NE —Z2-1F
Cash flows from operating activities REKETBNRERE
Cash generated from operations EERRENRE 40 1,959,458 5,438,287
Interest received ERFIE 44,047 75,622
Interest paid BHRFIE (226,316) (491,187)
Income tax paid ERTATEH (279,713) (183,437)
Net cash generated from operating activities EEEREEHNREFE 1,497,476 4,839,285
Cash flows from investing activities RERETBNRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE BERLE (210,283) (120,269)
Investment in an associate RE-HBERF (20,000) (9,581)
(Payments)/Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BERREN
plant and equipment (Fr30R)/FifssE 40 (57) 181
Interest income from financial investments SRRBRIAZFIBHMA
and instruments 54,119 (1,628)
Interest income from loan receivables REEREZHFSWA 48,924 20,006
Proceeds from disposal of avallable-for-sale HETHREESHEAE
financial assets PSR - 16,617
Purchases of avallable-for-sale financial assets BEWHRILESRAE (378,429) -
Proceeds from disposal of mining rights &R 2 S 30R = 180
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits of procurement of BRTEERIARS
derivative financial instruments (#m),/md (100,171) 32,356
Net outflows of financial assets at fair value through BAREEFEEEZEHA
profit or loss Bai/eREERDFE (245,616) (130,756)
Loan receivables granted to a third party M—ZE=HRENERER (1,000) (400,000)
Loan receivables repayment received from a third party  —& &= EBHEKER 10,000 290,000
Decrease in long-term bank deposits RARTERRD - 52,000
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR (7,209) =
Acquisition a subsidiary, net of cash acquired Wi —RB AR Gk ER 2 F8) (203,089) =
Net cash used in investing activities BREEEBMR S FE (1,052,811) (251,924)
Cash flows from financing activities REREZHNEEHE
Proceeds from borrowings ERTETIE 3,754,331 8,701,231
Repayment of borrowings BEER (5,804,362)  (13,505,816)
Capital injection by non-controlling interests RS TE - 500
Proceeds from sales and leassback transaction ERRERRSMEFE - 1,200,000
Cash paid for sale and leaseback transaction ERRIBARGENES (126,990) =
Decrease in amounts due to related parties JE( R 2B - (49,100)
Decrease in restricted bank balances pledged as {EBREBRITERNERR
security for current bank borrowings ZRBIFITERRE D 649,864 524,091
Net cash used in financing activities A& REnERSEE (1,527,157) (3,129,094
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ~ REREBREZEBM(FY) /L INFE (1,082,492) 1,458,267
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NS SR EN ) B/ 2 35,144 30,217
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year FURSRALEEY 21 2,337,547 849,063
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year EXRBERBREEEY 21 1,290,199 2,337,547
The notes on pages 121 to 283 are an integral part of these financial £ 121 2 283 BRI 3E A2 E M iR B
statements. BE—E0 o
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT

Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BAEEAN MESBEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 November 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda as a result of a group reorganisation
(“Reorganisation”).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 2 March 2004.

The Company together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the Group. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of iron and steel
products, trading of steel products and iron ore and real
estate business. The Group has manufacturing plants in Hebei
Province and Guangdong Province of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and sells mainly to customers located in the
PRC. The Group engages in real estate business in the PRC.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of RMB, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 31 March
2017.

— R

FERSTEEZEBERAR(AR
ADR-_ZFZF=F+—A=AKTK
—EEESH(BE]) RREBRE
—NMN—FRRVEEAREEMAKL
RERRARAETAA -

AR B R = B Hb i A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

ARARHA-FENF=A—AE
EEABARBHERAR LD -

RRBREMBARATRBRAE
c ARBETRRRERHERS
Em o WEERNMEBEAOESURE
HWEX - AEEEREARLME
([REDTIEERERERALEE
5 - WERSEMRFBENTFHE
TTHE - AERERFEEEFMESR
% o

BRBEBIN - NAGFHBFREAA
RETIT2 - AEHMBHRREL
HEFER(EERDR-_F—tF=
HA=1+—BH#tAERZ -
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of

Public Attachment 11

Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip
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COMPLAINT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRARAN  MASREOUNARETIREN) BE-Z—"FT_A=1—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordiance Cap 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of certain available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BAEEAN MESBEINARBTIREN) BE-T—RFT_A=T—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEGE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 EHBERRBEENE L
(a) New and amended standards adopted (@) AKEEEEMNH
by the Group IR EIEET A
The following new and amended standards TEFET REAEE]
are mandatory for the first time for the R|g B ERZF
financial year beginning on 1 January 2016: —~NF—A—HHA
M2 BFEEER
B4
HKAS 1 (Amendments) “Disclosure initiative” ARG ERE 1R
is effective for annual periods beginning on (1&=7)[ &=t E | -
or after 1 January 2016. This amendment R-_ZE—XRE—A
clarifies guidance in HKAS 1 on materiality — B2 EFABR
and aggregation, the presentation of FEHRES - I
subtotals, the structure of financial B EEEAE:t
statements and the disclosure of accounting AERIZE 1 SRE E AN
policies. MEE DEER
BZ25) - B EmE
R B2 5T R

EIRERAYIESI ©

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) “Financial LR
instruments”: Disclosures condensed FET75(BET) [ Ft
interim financial statements” is effective TEH: BEBFHAS
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 i) e I N
January 2016. This amendment clarifies Z—R"F—HA—H
that the additional disclosure required by N2 BABNFE
the amendments to HKFRS 7 ‘Disclosure R AR WiEET
- Offsetting financial assets and financial BEKRIETED:
liabilities’ is not specifically required for all AR ZE 345 FTE K
interim periods, unless required by HKAS AN A 4 4 R 2 sk
34, T8 H HA AR A 58 A
BEBBVBEHRE

AR 7 ROERT
[HE-—EHeRE
ENMERAE] -
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COMPLAINT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETTREN)

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)

HKAS 34 (Amendments) “Interim financial
reporting” is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. This
amendment clarifies what is meant by the
reference in the standard to ‘information
disclosed elsewhere in the interim
financial report’. It also amends HKAS
34 to require a cross-reference from the
interim financial statements to the location
of that information. The amendment is
retrospective.

Amendments and interpretations as
mentioned above are not expected to have
a material effect on the Group’s operating
results, financial position or comprehensive
income.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT

Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016
(BRBEEAN  FERBIUARBTLREN) HE_Z-—XE+_A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)

211 2 BRERBENE L

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued) (#&)

() Standards, amendments and b) R-ZE—REEN
interpretations to existing standards BHEASEEBRN
effective in 2016 but not relevant to the 0 BEEAK
Group: BT R :

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on or after

RT3 E sz %

BN EEREN

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016

BB EERE 1455
HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

BB BEWEER 115 (1B3T)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendment)

BEAGTERE16RREAES
%0155 38 5% (157])

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendment)

BAGTENE 1R REAES
RIS 41 8% (163])

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

BB GERIE 27 5% (1B7T)
KFRS 5 (Amendment)

BB BHREREAF 65 (B5T)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

BB IMELERE 75 (BF])

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

BB G ERIFE 195 (1BFT)
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendment)
BBMBMEENE 105 - BB
I REERIFE 1258 RE B
BREAERIZE 2855 (183T)

EERERP

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

WiEa L RAER BT RE

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

WERBFENAER A ELEE

Agriculture: bearer plants
BE  £EMEY

Equity method in separate financial
statements

BUMBHRRT RS

Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations

RHIELENERBEERERILE
REFE

Financial instruments: Disclosure —
Application of the disclosure
requirements to serving
contracts

THIA  BE-HRESAER
BERE

Employee benefits

&M

Investment entities: applying the
consolidation exception

REER  BRRAHZOIIMER

—E-RF-H—-H
1 January 2016

—E—F—H—H
1 January 2016

2% —A—H
1 January 2016
—ZE—RF—HF—H
1 January 2016

—ZT—RF—HF—H
1 January 2016

—Z—F¥—H—H

1 January 2016

—ZT—RF—HF—H
1 January 2016
—E—7R¥—HA—H
1 January 2016

i
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of Public Attachment 11 COMPLAINT

Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & Bt &8 R Kz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2016

(BBERPI - FASEHUUARKTTASN) BE-_S—AF+-A=+-BIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(E)

QA1 B BHERBENE

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued) (#&)

(c) The following new standards and (c) THEEMER=
amendments to standards have been E—-XE—HF—H
issued but are not yet effective for the BEBNEREE
financial year beginning 1 January 2016 MARER BRE
and have not been early adopted: 12 BT B 40 (9 % 2 B

RERIMEET

126

HKAS 7 (Amendment)

BEBGHERIE 75 (BFT)

HKAS 12 (Amendment)

BB G ERIFE 125 (1B5T)

HKFRS 9 (i)

BB BImEEE R ()

HKFRS 15 (i)

BRI ELERE 155 (i)

HKFRS 16 (iii)

BB RS 42 R 58 16 5% (i)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendment)

BEPHREEAF0RREE
SETERIE 285% (187])

Statement of cash flows

Rengx

Income taxes

P35t

Financial instruments

THIA

Revenue from contracts with customers

BEP 7RG AEEHBA

Leases

HE

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

REERABENA L RE M
HESFAEBE

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

Effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after

RT3 RfRR 2%
B EEREN

1 January 2017

—Z—+%—HA—H
1 January 2017
“Z—+t5—HA—H
1 January 2018
—2-N\&—H—H
1 January 2018
—2-N\¥—A—H
1 January 2019
“Z-NHF—A—H
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The Dumping and Subsidizing of
Cold-Rolled Steel in Coils and Strip

Public Attachment 11

COMPLAINT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & 3Bt #& R R Mz

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN MESBEINARBTIREN) BE-T—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 and have not been early adopted:
(continued)

None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except the
following set out below:

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

The new standard addresses the
classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

While the Group has yet to undertake
a detailed assessment of the
classification and measurement of
financial assets, debt instruments
currently classified as available-for-
sale (“AFS”) financial assets would
appear to satisfy the conditions for
classification as at fair value through
other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) and hence there will be no
change to the accounting for these
assets.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(E)

QA1 B BHERBENE

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

128

(continued) (#&)

(c) The following new standards and (c) THEEMER=
amendments to standards have been E—XE—H—H
issued but are not yet effective for BEBNEREE

the financial year beginning 1 January

2016 and have not been early adopted:

(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

MAREXN BARE
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() BEUBHRE

(continued) ZERIZE o5R[ &
BT HE (&)
For the other financial assets held by HNA KB
the Group, the Group does not expect BEREME @
the new guidance to have a significant BE ALEN
impact on the classification and TEEFT RSl
measurement of its financial assets. HEGREE
B D REFET =

BEAFE -

There will be no impact on the Group’s R EE
accounting for financial liabilities, as FBWIETE A
the new requirements only affect the RO EER
accounting for financial liabilities that =B E#8Et
are designated at fair value through ABmEKHE
profit or loss which are not relevant BEEnes

to the Group. The derecognition rules
have been transferred from HKAS 39
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 and have not been early adopted:
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(continued)

The new hedge accounting rules
will align the accounting for hedging
instruments more closely with the
Group’s risk management practices.
As a general rule, more hedge
relationships might be eligible for
hedge accounting, as the standard
introduces a more principles-based
approach. While the Group is yet to
undertake a detailed assessment, it
would appear that the Group’s current
hedge relationships would qualify as
continuing hedges upon the adoption
of HKFRS 9. Accordingly, the Group
does not expect a significant impact
on the accounting for its hedging
relationships.
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(BABEAN AESEINARETTREN)

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 and have not been early adopted:
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(continued)

The new impairment model requires
the recognition of impairment
provisions based on expected
credit losses (“ECL”) rather than
only incurred credit losses as is the
case under HKAS 39. It applies to
financial assets classified at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at
FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS
15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial
guarantee contracts. While the Group
has not yet undertaken a detailed
assessment of how its impairment
provisions would be affected by the
new model, it may result in an earlier
recognition of credit losses.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 and have not been early adopted:
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(continued)

The new standard also introduces
expanded disclosure requirements
and changes in presentation. These
are expected to change the nature
and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption
of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for
financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2018. Based on the
transitional provisions in the completed
HKFRS 9, early adoption in phases
was only permitted for annual reporting
periods beginning before 1 February
2015. After that date, the new rules
must be adopted in their entirety.
The Group does not intend to adopt
HKFRS 9 before its mandatory date.
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(BABEAN FESEINARBTIAEN) BE-T—RF+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 MREEEGE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures QA1 B BERBENE L

(continued) (#&)

(c) The following new standards and (¢ THEEMER=
amendments to standards have been E—-XE—HF—H
issued but are not yet effective for BEBNEREE
the financial year beginning 1 January MAREKR BRE
2016 and have not been early adopted: 12 57 IR MR 3T E
(continued) Al & 2 B /15 7T -

(&)
(i) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts iy BAFBHRE
with customers” £ A 2155
[EEP 2 A
R & HIE £/
WA
HKFRS 15 establishes a BB SRS
comprehensive framework for 4 Bl 1557
determining when to recognise e~y T —(A4r
revenue and how much revenue to S1ER - AR
recognise through a 5-step approach. T 7E (] AR FERR
HKFRS 15 provides specific guidance WA A &ﬁi@
on capitalisation of contract cost 7B AR
and licence arrangements. It also RBZ DA o
includes a cohesive set of disclosure BB mE
requirements about the nature, 4 Bl 1557
amount, timing and uncertainty of HELKAE
revenue and cash flows arising from b R R %
the entity’s contracts with customers. PRiR it B 884
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEGE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures QA1 B BRERBENE L

(continued) (#&)

(c) The following new standards and (c) THEEMER=
amendments to standards have been E—XRE—-—H—H
issued but are not yet effective for BEBNYREE
the financial year beginning 1 January MARER BRE
2016 and have not been early adopted: 12 57 IR MR OE
(continued) Al & % B ;& 5T :

(#&)
(i)  HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts iy BEHBHRE
with customers” (continued) £ 8] 2155
[EEF 2
R & D EER
WA (&)
the transfer of promised goods or B A DA BT A U2
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN AESEINARETTREN)

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 and have not been early adopted:
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts
with customers” (continued)

Management is currently assessing the
effects of applying the new standard
on the Group’s financial statements
and has identified the revenue from
sales of services, revenue from sales
of properties and revenue from
construction contracts that are likely to
be affected. The Group will make more
detailed assessments of the impact
over the next twelve months.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after 1
January 2018. At this stage, the group
does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date.

China Oriental Group Company Limited 23 J7 5 [ 2 A FR 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEGE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures QA1 B BRERBENE L

(continued) (#&)

(c) The following new standards and (c) THEEMER=
amendments to standards have been E-—XRE—-—H—H
issued but are not yet effective for BEBNYREE
the financial year beginning 1 January MARER BRE
2016 and have not been early adopted: 2 AR AR R E
(continued) Al & % B ;& 5T :

(&)
(i) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (iy BEHBHRE
7 Bl 1655
Eizk=g
HKFRS 16 will result in almost all BB BRE
leases being recognised on the % Bl 1657
balance sheet, as the distinction HEHETE
between operating and finance leases FIEHEEER
is removed. Under the new standard, EBERANE
an asset (the right to use the leased 7R A A
item) and a financial liability to pay EHmEMEE
rentals are recognised. The only "I &5 E 45 i
exceptions are short-term and low- Bro 1R I 3%
value leases. MR BE
(ZfEEH
B2 A4 ) B
S fNEEHE
B B & W R
R o ME— RIS
AR AR
BEMEE -
The accounting for lessors will not HHBEANE
significantly change. FTRER TS

AEANSE -
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(BABEAN AESEINARETTREN)

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(c)

The following new standards and
amendments to standards have been
issued but are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 and have not been early adopted:
(continued)

(i)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for Group’s operating
leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB 147.5
million, see note 42(c). However, the
Group has not yet determined to what
extent these commitments will result
in the recognition of an asset and a
liability for future payments and how
this will affect the Group’s profit and
classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be
covered by the exception for short-
term and low-value leases and
some commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as
leases under HKFRS 16.
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For the year ended 31 December 